
Village of Forest Park, Illinois 

517 Des Plaines Avenue 

Forest Park, Illinois 60130 

Phone: 708-366-2323 / Fax: 708-488-0361 

Web: www.forestpark.net 

Regular Village Council Meeting Agenda 

Monday, February 13, 2023 – 7:00 p.m. 

Meeting will be conducted In-Person and Via Zoom 

You may listen to the meeting by participating in a Zoom conference call as follows:  

Dial-In Number: 312-626-6799; Meeting ID 87372150778; Passcode 973986 or by clicking here: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87372150778?pwd=WDQwZ2JuUWNqSlo1WUExZDZMSjEvdz09  

Public Comments are required to be submitted to the Village Clerk in advance of the meeting: 

In-Person Comments: Complete and submit Speaker Sign-In Form to Village Clerk prior to 7:00 p.m. 

E-mail Comments: E-mail required to be sent to Village Clerk (vmoritz@forestpark.net) prior to 6:30 p.m. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a. January 23, 2023 Village Council Meeting 

b. January 23, 2023 Special Village Council Meeting 

c. January 23, 2023 Closed Session Meeting 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 

5. COMMUNICATIONS 

6. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

7. BILLS BY RESOLUTION 

a. Resolution Approving Payment of Bills Dated February 13, 2023 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Annual NPDES Phase II MS4 Presentation by Village’s Consulting Engineers (CBBEL) 

b. Presentation by Village’s Consulting Engineers (CBBEL) Regarding Village’s 2023 Infrastructure Plan 

c. Ordinance Amending Section 2-7 of Chapter 7 of Title 2 of the Municipal Code of the Village of Forest 

Park (Board of Health) 

d. Ordinance Amending Sections 9-4C-2 of Title 9 regarding Text Amendment PZC 2022-03 

e. Resolution Approving Vigilant Solutions Proposal for Police Department LPR Cameras 

f. Resolution Approving the Village of Forest Park 50/50 Sidewalk Replacement Program 

g. Resolution Approving Agreement with Illinois Secretary of State’s Office 

h. Resolution Approving a Local Public Agency Joint Funding Agreement for IDOT State Let Construction 

Work and an Engineering Services Agreement with CBBEL Regarding Certain Improvements to the Van 

Buren Street Parking Lot and Harrison Street 

i. Resolution in Support of an Application for a Rebuilding American Infrastructure with Sustainability and 

Equity (RAISE) Grant Application for the Harlem Avenue Multimodal Bridge Project 

j. Policy Direction by Village Council Regarding Sending Letter Regarding Local Match Commitment for 

the Harlem Avenue Multimodal Bridge Project 

k. Resolution Approving the Purchase of Extraction Equipment by Fire Department 

l. Resolution Approving the Paramedic Billing Contract 

m. Motion to approve Mayor’s appointment of the following individuals: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87372150778?pwd=WDQwZ2JuUWNqSlo1WUExZDZMSjEvdz09
mailto:vmoritz@forestpark.net


i. Meghan Hunt; Recreation Board; Term to Expire: April 30, 2026 

ii. Bridget Lane; Safety and Traffic Commission; Term to Expire: April 30, 2024 

n. Approval: Housing Forward Use of Public Property Request – 2/17/2023 Fundraiser 

o. Approval: Ratification of Mayor’s Execution of Senior trips 

p. Approval: Ratification of Issuance of Raffle License Application – 209 United 

10. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

11. COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

a. Adjourn into Closed Session pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c) (2) Collective Bargaining Matters 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

HELD ON MONDAY EVENING, JANUARY 23, 2023 
 
 

Mayor Hoskins led all assembled in the Pledge of Allegiance at 7:25 p.m.  
 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call. It was 
noted that Commissioner Nero was attending remotely, in compliance with section 1-4-4-H, of the 
village code of the Village of Forest Park.   
 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by Commissioner Maxham that the minutes 
from the January 9, 2023, Regular Meeting of the Council be approved without reading as each 
member has received a copy thereof.   
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Ms. Kristen Lyons, 2022/2023 President of the Kiwanis Club of Forest Park spoke in support of the 
Proclamation being adopted tonight, celebrating the 100th Anniversary of the Kiwanis Club.  Ms. 
Lyons gave background on the history of Kiwanis and the Forest Park club.  Last, Ms. Lyons 
thanked the Village Council for supporting the club. 
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
None 
 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
 
The Police Department submitted its November/December 2022, report. 
 
 
 



 2 

APPROVAL OF BILLS: 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham that the Resolution for the payment of 
bills be adopted.  The bills totaled $891,051.53. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Clerk Moritz read the Mayor’s proclamation celebrating the 
100th anniversary of the Kiwanis Club of Forest Park aloud. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham that the Ordinance abating the tax 
heretofore levied for the year 2022 to pay the principal of and 
interest on the village’s $6,745,000 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds (alternate revenue source), Series 2012, of 
the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham that the Ordinance authorizing the 
sale or disposition of surplus property (electronic equipment) of 
the Village of Forest Park be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously 

 
 

R-03-23 
RESOLUTION FOR THE 

PAYMENT OF BILLS IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $891,051.53 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROCLAMATION KIWANIS 
CLUB 100TH ANNIVERSARY 

 
 

O-03-23 
ORDINANCE ABATING THE 
TAX FOR 2022 ON SERIES 

2012 GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O-04-23 
ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 

THE SALE OF SURPLUS 
PROPERTY 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 3 

It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham that the Resolution approving Pay 
Request #1 (Final) for the Village of Forest Park Fire 
Department Roof Replacement Project from CSR Roofing Co. 
be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham that the Resolution approving and 
ratifying the execution of a Postage Equipment Maintenance 
Agreement with Pitney Bowes, Inc. be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham that the Resolution rescinding 
Resolution R-103-22 and authorizing approval of a Financial 
Advisor Letter Agreement by and between the Village of Forest 
Park and Ice Miller be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham that the Resolution in support of Tax 
Increment Finance be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

R-04-23 
RESOLUTION APPROVING 

PAY REQUEST #1 FOR 
FIRE DEPARTMENT ROOF 

TO CSR ROOFING CO. 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R-05-23 
RESOLUTION APPROVING 

PITNEY BOWES 
MAINTENANCE 

AGREEMENT 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R-06-23 
RESOLUTION APPROVING 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR 
LETTER AGREEMENT 

WITH ICE MILLER 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R-07-23 
RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT 

OF TAX INCREMENT 
FINANCING 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 



 4 

It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham to approve the request from the Forest 
Park Public Library to use the Picnic Grove on Saturday, May 
20, 2023, from 2-4 pm for a kids’ outdoor science program. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham to approve the request from the Forest 
Park Public Library to display banners promoting their Black 
History Month program series of events. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Voogd to approve the request from the Forest 
Park Chamber of Commerce and Development to display 
banners promoting their St. Patrick’s Day Parade on March 4, 
2023, and their Spring Wine Walk on April 22, 2023. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Voogd to approve the request from O’Sullivan’s 
Public House to erect a tent for the St. Patrick’s Parade day, 
Saturday, March 4, 2023. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 
   and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

LIBRARY REQUEST TO 
USE PICNIC GROVE 

APPROVED BY MOTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LIBRARY REQUEST TO 
DISPLAY BLACK HISTORY 
MONTH SERIES BANNERS 

APPROVED BY MOTION 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAMBER REQUEST TO 
DISPLAY ST. PATRICK’S 

PARADE AND SPRING 
WINE WALK BANNERS 

APPROVED BY MOTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O’SULLIVAN’S PUBLIC 
HOUSE REQUEST TO 
ERECT TENT FOR ST. 

PATRICK’S PARADE DAY 
APPROVED BY MOTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 5 

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT: 
 
Administrator Amidei reported that the Annual NPDES Phase II MS4 presentation that was on this 
meeting’s agenda will be presented at the next meeting on February 13th.  Administrator Amide also 
reported that he expects to have the 2023 Infrastructure plan ready for the February 13th meeting as 
well. 
 
 
COMMISSIONER’S REPORTS: 
 
Commissioner Maxham reported that the first Mental Health Fair is tentatively scheduled for May 6th.  
It will include local vendors for mental health and social services, and will be presented in partnership 
with Proviso Township Mental Health Commission.  
 
Commissioner Nero reported on activities of the Safety and Traffic Commission, chaired by Jordan 
Kuehn.  The following issues are being addressed: 

• Madison Street Crosswalks – Yield to Pedestrian signs.  There were issues with the batteries.  
All have been replaced and are in service with the exception of Beloit.  The Beloit sign needs 
repairs and they are in the works. 

• Madison and Elgin Crosswalk – Issue with eastbound traffic left turn traffic.  Vehicles driving 
through the crosswalk in the westbound lanes trying to reach the turn lane for Harlem.  
Breakaway crosswalk signs will be installed in the crosswalk at Elgin to prevent wrong lane 
traffic.  The signs are on order and will be installed as soon as they are received. 

• Marengo Avenue behind Madison Commons – Blind spot.  Signage and a mirror are 
recommended to be installed. 

• Lathrop and Brown – Repaint yellow curbs.  Complete  
 
Commissioner Voogd commented about the ARPA discussion earlier today and expressed that she is 
encouraged about the upcoming projects.  The commissioner communicated that Public Works has 
been playing catch up and is spending a lot of their resources on picking up trash along Madison 
Street.  Business owners are encouraged to help keep the area in front of their business picked up as 
it is a condition of their business license. Last, the commissioner announced that a member of the 
Recreation Board has stepped down and there is another open spot on this board, adding that it will 
be increasingly difficult to convene a forum with fewer members. 
 
Mayor Hoskins encouraged the elected officials to respond to the invitation to attend the West Central 
Municipal Conference Legislative Breakfast on February 4th.  Mayors Adduci of River Forest, Scaman 
of Oak Park and Thompson of Broadview were honored in Washington DC for their efforts in forming 
The Cross-Community Climate Collaborative (C4) and were awarded a $150,000 grant to assist in 
the group’s efforts.  The mayor offered his congratulations to all involved.  Mayor Hoskins offered his 
appreciation to Chief Gross for the Police Department’s efforts in running the Citizen’s Police 
Academy.  Last, Mayor Hoskins met with Cook County Sheriff, Tom Dart, to discuss mental health 
resources and addressing mental health issues in the public.  Sheriff Dart introduced collaborating 
with communities and law enforcement to introduce tools the sheriff’s office is using to reduce 
recidivism, which may help local law enforcement when dealing with repeat calls for the same 
citizens.   
 
 
 
 
 



 6 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

There being no further business to be addressed, Commissioner Nero moved and Commissioner 
Byrnes seconded to adjourn.  The motion carried. 
 
Mayor Hoskins declared the meeting adjourned at 7:59 P.M. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted,  
 
 

Vanessa Moritz 
Village Clerk 



THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

HELD ON MONDAY EVENING, JANUARY 23, 2023 
 
 

Mayor Hoskins called the meeting to order at 5:34 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL 
 

Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call. It 
was noted that Commissioner Nero was attending remotely, in compliance with section 1-4-
4-H, of the village code of the Village of Forest Park.  Also in attendance were Grant 
Consultant, Todd Kupsak, Village Clerk, Vanessa Moritz, and Village Administrator, Moses 
Amidei.  
 
Mayor Hoskins stated that the format of the meeting will be an informal workshop and regular 
rules of order are suspended.  The purpose of the meeting was to discuss proposed 
expenditures from American Rescue Plan Award (ARPA) funds, totaling $1,863,000.     
 
Administrator Amidei detailed that we have more flexibility on the types of acceptable 
expenditures because Forest Park’s ARPA allocation is under $10 million. Mr. Kupsak 
suggested that the village may be eligible for additional ARPA funds once we complete 
spending the initial allocation.  The next ARPA report is due in April, 2023 and will be 
completed by Mr. Kupsak’s firm.  Mr. Amidei further noted that, as requested, alternate 
sources of revenue are being used for many of the previously proposed expenses.  These 
are detailed on the draft budget (attached). Further, some of the items have already been 
completed and others are already ordered, due to the urgency of the work.   
 
The Chamber of Commerce is slated to receive $40,000 a year for three years, to be used 
for marketing assistance.  The village will request a comprehensive marketing plan as well as 
documentation twice yearly and an annual overview of the activities and results as a 
condition of the funding.  In addition, there was discussion about the chamber being 
responsible for the administration of possible business incentive grants.  The village would 
retain all final approvals and distribution of funding.  Administrator Amidei was asked to 
forward information from other municipal grant programs for businesses.   
 
Mental Health Assistance is $10,000 a year for three years and is intended to provide better 
resources and social services to residents.  Commissioner Maxham added that she is 
working with staff to hold a mental health fair on May 6th and suggested that the village look 
into reinstating the village’s Health Board.   
 

Public Comment 
 

Mr. Mark Boroughf asked what the split is for the Chamber or what would the Chamber get 
paid for administering the business grant program. 
 



 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to be addressed, Commissioner Nero moved to adjourn into 
closed session pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(2) to consider collective bargaining matters.  
Commissioner Byrnes seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously. Mayor 
Hoskins declared the meeting adjourned at 6:45 p.m.  
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



R E S O L U T I O N  No.

               BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, 
that we dispense with the reading of the individual bills inasmuch as each department head has approved
and signed bills in the following aggregate amount for their respective departments.

Refunds and Allocations 251.00$                             
Public Affairs 79,019.51$                        
Police Department 1,265.63$                          
Community Center 42.35$                               
Accounts & Finance (Clerks Office) 171,520.39$                      
Accounts & Finance (Fire Department) 41,915.71$                        
Department of Health & Safety 9,082.16$                          
Street Department 103,490.01$                      
Public Property 54,681.98$                        
Seizure 218.82$                             
Federal Custom 12,771.86$                        
Fleet Replacement 320.06$                             
TIF 2,449.74$                          
VIP 9,599.51$                          
Water Department 23,198.08$                        

TOTAL 509,826.81$                      

ADOPTED BY THE Council of the Village of Forest Park this 13th Day of February, 2023.

  

Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:

___________________________
Rory Hoskins, Mayor

ATTEST:

___________________________
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-00-000-4220-300  Total Parking Solutions Inc 1/13/2023 251.00          
Refunds and Allocations 251.00          



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-10-101-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 1/1/2023 3,444.40       
100-10-101-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 1/1/2023 190.00          
100-10-101-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 1/1/2023 214.70          
100-10-101-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 1/1/2023 3,114.10       
100-10-101-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 1/1/2023 499.70          
100-10-101-6120-160  Verizon Wireless 1/22/2023 (7.14)             
100-10-101-6120-305  Illinois State Police 12/1/2022 15.00            
100-10-101-6120-305  Illinois State Police 12/12/2022 15.00            
100-10-101-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 1/22/2023 300.64          
100-10-101-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 1/22/2023 59.98            
100-10-101-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 1/22/2023 84.38            
100-10-101-6150-202  Advocate Occupational Health 1/9/2023 578.00          
100-10-101-6150-202  Checkpoint Press Inc 1/19/2023 348.00          
100-10-101-6150-202  Stanard & Associates Inc 1/30/2023 1,150.00       
100-10-101-6150-300  West Suburban Cons Dispatch Center 1/1/2023 87,995.00     
100-10-101-6150-300  West Suburban Cons Dispatch Center 1/1/2023 (20,351.00)    
100-10-101-7000-150  Telcom Innovations Group LLC 1/10/2023 618.75          
100-11-111-6100-115  Ice Miller LLP 1/25/2023 750.00          

Public Affairs 79,019.51     



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-12-121-6150-121  IPELRA 1/17/2023 400.00          
100-12-124-6145-211  Sirchie Acquisition Company LLC. 1/26/2023 139.53          
100-12-124-6150-114  Thomson Reuters-West 1/1/2023 446.12          
100-12-124-6150-114  Mid States Organized Crime Info Center 1/24/2023 200.00          
100-12-130-6145-100  Work N Gear LLC 1/9/2023 79.98            

Police Department 1,265.63       



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-15-151-6140-200  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 12/31/2022 32.35            
100-15-154-6170-114  BLUE CAB CO. 12/14/2022 10.00            

Community Center 42.35            



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-21-211-5005-002  Blue Cross-Blue Shield of Ill 1/17/2023 141,176.91   
100-21-211-5005-002  Guardian 1/20/2023 7,869.64       
100-21-211-6110-110  Xerox Financial Services 1/10/2023 141.63          
100-21-211-6110-110  Xerox Financial Services 1/10/2023 98.39            
100-21-211-6140-104  Office 8 1/19/2023 293.94          
100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 12/28/2022 145.24          
100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 1/4/2023 128.40          
100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 1/5/2023 35.18            
100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 1/5/2023 17.99            
100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 1/11/2023 341.19          
100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 1/18/2023 86.87            
100-21-211-6140-110  SOLV Business Solution-Safeguard 233439 1/20/2023 208.25          
100-21-211-6140-140  Quill 12/28/2022 148.90          
100-21-211-6140-140  Quill 1/18/2023 138.55          
100-21-211-6150-116  Growing Community Media NFP 7/27/2022 50.00            
100-21-211-6150-116  Growing Community Media NFP 8/10/2022 50.00            
100-21-211-6150-116  Growing Community Media NFP 1/5/2023 50.00            
100-21-211-6150-122  IPELRA 1/13/2023 400.00          
100-21-211-6150-122  Springbrook Holding Company LLC 1/11/2023 94.50            
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 1/25/2023 112.76          
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 1/25/2023 56.38            
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 1/25/2023 51.18            
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T LONG DISTANCE 1/4/2023 13.78            
100-21-211-6160-001  Alliant Insurance Services Inc. 1/10/2023 100.00          
100-21-211-6190-003  POLICE PENSION FUND 1/19/2023 8,952.00       
100-21-211-6190-004  Firefighters Pension Fund 1/19/2023 8,952.00       
100-21-211-7000-080  Xerox Financial Services 1/10/2023 122.50          
100-21-211-7000-080  Xerox Financial Services 1/10/2023 1,684.21       

Accounts and Finance (Clerks Office) 171,520.39   



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-30-301-6120-305 Kyle Piotrowski 1/23/2023 55.00            
100-30-301-6140-200  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 12/31/2022 60.35            
100-30-301-6140-200  State Chemical Industrial Products 2/1/2023 199.12          
100-30-301-6150-114  Illinois Fire Chiefs Assoc 12/16/2022 450.00          
100-30-301-7000-040  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 12/31/2022 19.79            
100-30-302-6110-150  Verizon Wireless 1/22/2023 158.07          
100-30-302-6145-100  Air One Equipment Inc 1/23/2023 2,411.00       
100-30-302-6150-122 Christopher Joseph Soda 12/2/2022 850.00          
100-30-303-6100-160  Metro Paramedic Services Inc 1/15/2023 37,738.00     
100-30-303-6100-160  Metro Paramedic Services Inc 1/15/2023 (489.28)         
100-30-303-6145-300  Linde Gas North America LLC 1/5/2023 113.81          
100-30-303-6145-300  Linde Gas North America LLC 1/11/2023 349.85          

Accounts and Finance (Fire Department) 41,915.71     



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-40-401-5000-017  AMS Electric Inc 1/20/2023 900.00          
100-40-401-5000-017  B&F Construction Code Service 1/13/2023 320.00          
100-40-401-5000-017 Raymond Traynor 1/23/2023 450.00          
100-40-402-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 1/1/2023 1,311.00       
100-40-402-6100-115  Muse Community + Design 1/31/2023 5,575.00       
100-40-402-6150-240  Book Reporting Service 1/30/2023 501.00          
100-40-410-6140-202  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 12/31/2022 25.16            

Department of Health & Safety 9,082.16       



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-50-502-6140-202  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 12/31/2022 73.62            
100-50-502-6185-106  Cargill Salt Road Safety 1/12/2023 2,920.33       
100-50-502-6185-106  RUSSO POWER EQUIPMENT 1/26/2023 797.50          
100-50-502-6185-110  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 12/31/2022 8.09              
100-50-502-6185-110  Traffic Control & Protection 1/24/2023 796.30          
100-50-502-6185-112  Republic Services #551 1/15/2023 983.20          
100-50-502-6185-501  Republic Services #551 1/15/2023 44,198.03     
100-50-502-6185-502  Republic Services #551 1/15/2023 31,222.71     
100-50-502-6185-503  Republic Services #551 1/15/2023 6,084.97       
100-50-502-6185-505  West Cook County Solid Waste 12/31/2022 16,405.26     

Streets Department 103,490.01   



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-552-6180-101  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 12/31/2022 128.94          
100-55-552-6180-101  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 12/21/2022 6.52              
100-55-552-6180-101  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 1/3/2023 73.32            
100-55-552-6180-101  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 1/6/2023 16.81            
100-55-552-6180-101 Dan Michaels 2/1/2023 32.40            
100-55-552-6180-114  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 12/31/2022 23.39            
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 1/24/2023 432.60          
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 1/26/2023 1,165.30       
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 1/31/2023 1,348.90       
100-55-553-6180-152  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 1/13/2023 171.75          
100-55-553-6180-152  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 1/31/2023 595.00          
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 12/27/2022 522.36          
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 1/4/2023 520.65          
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 1/4/2023 183.88          
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 1/14/2023 107.47          
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 1/30/2023 25.37            
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 1/30/2023 29.12            
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 1/30/2023 27.19            
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 1/30/2023 30.87            
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 1/30/2023 290.38          
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 1/31/2023 29.46            
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 1/31/2023 46.62            
100-55-555-6180-100  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 12/31/2022 20.54            
100-55-555-6180-100  Comcast 1/8/2023 200.01          
100-55-555-6180-100  JC Licht LLC 1/17/2023 370.28          
100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 12/28/2022 165.41          
100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 1/11/2023 111.20          
100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 1/18/2023 411.28          
100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 1/18/2023 (16.62)           
100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 1/18/2023 36.98            
100-55-555-6180-100  Reliable Fire & Security 1/18/2023 603.07          
100-55-555-6180-100  PremiStar-North 1/26/2023 484.00          
100-55-555-6180-110  Comcast 1/2/2023 50.60            
100-55-555-6180-110  Comcast 1/12/2023 2.11              
100-55-555-6180-110  Comcast 1/13/2023 128.95          
100-55-555-6180-110  Reliable Fire & Security 1/18/2023 603.08          



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-555-6180-120 Arthur O'Rourke 1/26/2023 1,500.00       
100-55-555-6180-130  Reliable Fire & Security 1/18/2023 552.85          
100-55-555-6180-140  Comcast 1/7/2023 2.11              
100-55-555-6180-140  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 1/6/2023 504.10          
100-55-555-6180-140  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 1/12/2023 207.42          
100-55-555-6180-140  Reliable Fire & Security 1/18/2023 630.25          
100-55-560-6155-108  Total Parking Solutions Inc 1/27/2023 720.00          
100-55-560-6180-125  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 1/27/2023 1,186.40       
100-55-560-6180-175  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 12/31/2022 325.84          
100-55-570-6155-101  Mohr Oil Company 1/13/2023 12,544.48     
100-55-570-6155-106  ABC Automotive Electronic 9/30/2022 462.45          
100-55-570-6155-106  ABC Automotive Electronic 11/4/2022 452.41          
100-55-570-6155-106  Atlas Bobcat LLC 7/27/2021 (469.05)         
100-55-570-6155-106  Battery Service Corporation 1/27/2023 487.80          
100-55-570-6155-106  CCP INDUSTRIES INC 1/23/2023 122.25          
100-55-570-6155-106  Fleet Safety Supply 1/20/2023 177.19          
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 1/10/2023 27.00            
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 1/10/2023 75.36            
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 1/10/2023 122.20          
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 1/10/2023 128.03          
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 1/10/2023 242.59          
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 1/11/2023 (23.97)           
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 1/17/2023 186.10          
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 1/25/2023 86.96            
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 1/26/2023 (113.25)         
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 1/27/2023 318.44          
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 1/27/2023 387.44          
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 1/30/2023 1,118.08       
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 1/31/2023 145.72          
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 1/31/2023 (559.85)         
100-55-570-6155-106  Lindco Equipment Sales Inc 1/13/2023 48.51            
100-55-570-6155-106  Linde Gas North America LLC 1/22/2023 205.16          
100-55-570-6155-106  Linde Gas North America LLC 1/23/2023 72.50            
100-55-570-6155-106  Terminal Supply Co 1/27/2023 220.76          
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/6/2022 68.90            
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/6/2022 346.10          
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/6/2022 15.46            



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/7/2022 5.36              
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/8/2022 73.88            
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/8/2022 (75.00)           
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/12/2022 79.46            
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/16/2022 394.58          
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/16/2022 9.90              
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/16/2022 283.09          
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/16/2022 (2.00)             
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/16/2022 (2.00)             
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/20/2022 117.72          
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/20/2022 87.60            
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/20/2022 (62.94)           
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/21/2022 80.62            
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/26/2022 112.46          
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 9/27/2022 373.09          
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 10/1/2022 211.60          
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 10/14/2022 54.18            
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 10/17/2022 48.74            
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 10/20/2022 330.93          
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 10/31/2022 5.57              
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 11/17/2022 244.98          
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 11/22/2022 650.61          
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 11/22/2022 158.24          
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 11/22/2022 (70.00)           
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 11/23/2022 9.78              
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 11/25/2022 206.47          
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 11/28/2022 (140.00)         
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 11/30/2022 73.31            
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 12/20/2022 296.52          
100-55-570-6155-110  Snap on Industrial 1/25/2023 126.18          
100-55-570-6155-112  Action Transmission & Auto 1/31/2023 2,850.00       
100-55-570-6155-112  Atlas Bobcat LLC 1/18/2023 1,654.89       
100-55-570-6155-112  Commercial Tire Service 1/17/2023 2,098.00       
100-55-570-6155-112  Fire Service Inc 1/5/2023 2,881.87       
100-55-570-6155-112  Fire Service Inc 1/5/2023 3,856.65       
100-55-570-6155-112  Fire Service Inc 1/17/2023 1,600.00       
100-55-570-6155-112  Fire Service Inc 1/17/2023 3,648.04       



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-570-6155-112  NOBS TOWING 1/18/2023 375.00          
100-55-585-6180-305  Liberty Flag & Specialty 11/23/2022 530.67          

Public Property 54,681.98     



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

230-00-000-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 1/22/2023 69.62            
230-00-000-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 1/22/2023 149.20          

Seizure 218.82          



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

232-00-000-6900-232  CDS Office Technologies 1/31/2023 312.11          
232-00-000-6900-232  Forest Printing Company 1/11/2023 162.20          
232-00-000-6900-232 Scott Frey 2/13/2023 230.00          
232-00-000-6900-232  J.G. Uniforms 12/29/2022 117.00          
232-00-000-6900-232  KIESLER'S POLICE SUPPLY INC. 1/11/2023 3,300.00       
232-00-000-6900-232 Motorola Solutions StarCom21 Network 1/1/2023 110.00          
232-00-000-6900-232 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 1/31/2023 246.00          
232-00-000-6900-232  Quill 1/13/2023 118.55          
232-00-000-6900-232  SEPS Inc 1/26/2023 4,066.00       
232-00-000-6900-232  Special T Unlimited 1/18/2023 1,060.00       
232-00-000-6900-232  Vigilant Solutions LLC 1/11/2023 3,050.00       

Federal Customs 12,771.86     



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

240-55-551-7000-001  ABC Automotive Electronic 10/28/2022 125.06          
240-55-551-7000-001  ABC Automotive Electronic 11/18/2022 195.00          

Fleet Replacement 320.06          



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

302-00-000-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 1/1/2023 237.50          
302-00-000-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 1/1/2023 959.50          
304-00-000-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 1/1/2023 95.00            
304-00-000-6185-700  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 1/31/2023 1,157.74       

TIF 2,449.74       



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

312-00-000-6100-115  Ice Miller LLP 1/25/2023 1,500.00       
312-00-000-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 1/22/2023 38.01            
312-00-000-7000-102 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 1/18/2023 2,575.50       
312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 1/4/2023 160.00          
312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 1/10/2023 160.00          
312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 1/23/2023 80.00            
312-00-000-7000-312  Midwest Fence 12/28/2022 5,086.00       

VIP 9,599.51       



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

501-80-800-4910-305  Cook County Clerk 1/23/2023 103.00          
501-80-800-6100-110  Ice Miller LLP 1/25/2023 750.00          
501-80-800-6110-105  Verizon Wireless 1/22/2023 36.01            
501-80-800-6150-150  AT&T 1/25/2023 60.36            
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 1/4/2023 76.42            
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 1/6/2023 21.79            
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 1/13/2023 107.90          
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 1/14/2023 34.25            
501-80-800-6150-154  Constellation Energy Services Inc 12/30/2022 3,247.85       
501-80-800-6150-154  Constellation Energy Services Inc 1/6/2023 433.18          
501-80-800-6155-110  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 12/31/2022 11.69            
501-80-800-6800-151  Centurion Plumbing Company 1/13/2023 11,528.84     
501-80-800-6800-151  Clear View 1/23/2023 792.50          
501-80-800-6800-153  Comcast 1/6/2023 83.90            
501-80-800-6800-153  CDC ENTERPRISES INC 1/24/2023 3,700.00       
501-80-800-6800-153  Reliable Fire & Security 1/18/2023 72.00            
501-80-800-6800-153  Reliable Fire & Security 1/18/2023 263.00          
501-80-800-6800-176  Core & Main LP 1/6/2023 1,278.11       
501-80-800-6800-176  Core & Main LP 1/13/2023 597.28          

Water Department 23,198.08     



AGENDA MEMO 

Village Council Meeting 

Forest Park, Illinois 

February 13, 2023 

Issue Statement  

NPDES Phase II MS4 Presentation by Staff from Christopher B. Burke Engineering 

Background 

Staff from the Village’s consulting engineering firm, Christopher B. Burke Engineering, will provide their 
annual presentation regarding the Village’s NPDES MS4 Program.  This water pollution prevention program is 
required by the US and IL EPA.  For more information about this program, please click on the links noted 
below: 

‐ US EPA 
‐ ILEPA 
‐ Village NPDES MS4 Webpage 

Attachments 

‐ CBBEL PowerPoint Presentation 

https://www.epa.gov/npdes
https://www2.illinois.gov/epa/topics/forms/water-permits/storm-water/Pages/ms4.aspx
https://www.forestpark.net/dfp/departments/public-works/national-pollution-discharge-elimination-system/


Travis M. Parry, PE, CFM, CPMSM, CPSWQ
Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd.

NPDES Phase II MS4 
Annual Public Meeting



What is NPDES?
 National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

Federally mandated permit program controls water 
pollution by regulating point sources that discharge pollutants 
into waters of the United States:

 Point sources are discrete conveyances such as pipes or 

man-made ditches

Not for individual homes that are connected to a 

municipal system or use a septic system

 Industrial, municipal, and other facilities must obtain 

permits if their discharges go directly to surface waters.



What is Phase II?
 Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987
 USEPA to address stormwater in two phases
◦ Phase I – Large and Medium MS4s
◦ Large - A large MS4 is a system that is located in an incorporated place 

or county with a population of 250,000 or more 
◦ Medium - A medium MS4 is a system that is located in an incorporated 

place or county with a population between 100,000 - 249,999 

◦ Phase II – Small MS4s
◦ Small - A regulated small MS4 is any small MS4 located in an 

"urbanized area" (UA), as defined by the Bureau of the 
Census, or located outside of a UA and brought into the 
program by the NPDES permitting authority 



Phase I vs Phase II?
 1972 - Clean Water Act passed “to preserve, protect 

and improve the Nation’s water resources

 1990 – NPDES Phase I Implemented for medium and 
large MS4s 

 1999 – Final NPDES Phase II Rule Published 
December 8, 1999

 2003 – Phase II Notice of Intent by March 10, 2003 
for all MS4s not covered by Phase I



What is an Urbanized Area?

 An urbanized area is a land area comprising 
one or more places – central places – and the 
adjacent densely settled surrounding area –
urban fringe – that together have a residential 
population of at least 50,000 and an overall 
population density of at least 1,000 people 
per square mile.

 464 Urbanized areas in United States
 Approximately 670 Communities in IL



Urbanized Area

 464 Urbanized areas in United States

 Approximately 670 Communities in IL



What is an MS4?
 Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System 

 A conveyance or system of conveyance owned 
by a  state, city, or other public entity that 
discharges to waters of the United States:

Designed or used for collecting storm water;

 Is not a combined sewer; and
 Is not part of a Publicly Owned Treatment 
Works (POTW)



Aspects of the MS4

 Not Always A System of Storm Sewers
 MS4’s May Include:
◦ Ditches
◦ Curbs
◦ Gutters
◦ Streams
◦ Wetlands
◦ Drainage Swales
◦ Any Storm Water Conveyance



Other MS4 - Examples

 Highway Departments
 Universities
 Local Sewer Districts
 Hospitals
 Military Bases
 Prisons
 Airports



Why Are We Here?

Village must 
regulate ALL 
discharges to     
the MS4

• Construction Sites
• Commercial Uses
• Industrial Uses
• Private Residences
• Municipal Facilities 

and activities



 Develop NPDES program and Stormwater 
Management Program Plan to address 6 
minimum control measures

 Prepare and submit NOI
 Submit Annual Report to IEPA regarding 

status of implementation of stormwater 
management program

 Annual public meeting
 Annual permit fee - $1000

NPDES MS4 Permit 



NPDES MS4 Permit

 Required to develop a stormwater management 
program comprised of BMPs and measurable goals 
for each of the following six minimum control 
measures:

1. Public education and outreach on storm water impacts
2. Public involvement and participation
3. Illicit discharge detection and elimination
4. Construction site storm water runoff control
5. Post construction storm water management in new 

development and redevelopment
6. Pollution prevention/good housekeeping for municipal 

operations 



 5-Year Permit Cycles
 First Permit Cycle for Small MS4s:  

2003-2008
 Last Permit 
◦ Issued February 10, 2016
◦ Expired February 28, 2021

New permit is likely to be issued this 
year

Permit Updates



NPDES MS4 BMPs

 Public education and outreach
◦ Brochures and newsletter articles
◦ Website information and links

 Public involvement and participation
◦ Trash collection at community events
◦ Annual Public Meeting

 Illicit discharge detection and elimination
◦ Outfall Inspections
◦ Storm sewer and receiving stream map
◦ Regulatory programs and enforcement



NPDES MS4 BMPs



NPDES MS4 BMPs

Construction site runoff control
◦ Plan review procedures
◦ Site inspections and enforcement

 Post construction runoff control
◦ Plan review procedures
◦ Site inspections and enforcement

 Pollution prevention/Good housekeeping
◦ Staff training
◦ Inspection and maintenance of public 

infrastructure
◦Municipal operations stormwater control



Questions ?



February 13, 2023

2023 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
PLAN

2023 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
PLAN



• In November 2017, Staff presented the 
Five Year Infrastructure Plan consisting 
of work projected for calendar years 2018-2022

• The plan consisted of alley, roadway, 
and water main improvements based 
on recent assessments

• We have prepared the 2023 Infrastructure Plan 
using the same criteria. Moving forward we will 
be preparing a Three-Year Infrastructure Plan for 
calendar years 2024-2026

Background

2023  INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN2



2023  INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN

NORTH WATER
TOWER PAINTING

3

PROJECTS2023

VAN BUREN ST
MULTI-USE PATH

Proposed
2023 Infrastructure Plan 
NORTH SIDE

WILCOX ST.

COMMUTER
BIKE 
FACILITIES

MADISON ST.



Proposed
2023 Infrastructure Plan 
SOUTH SIDE

2023  INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN

H
A

R
LE

M
 A

V
E.

C
IR

C
LE

 A
V

E.
4

PROJECTS2023

15TH ST.
FE

R
D

IN
A

N
D

 A
V

E.

COMMUTER
BIKE 
FACILITIES

ROOSEVELT RD.

HARVARD ST.

M
A

R
EN

G
O

 A
V

E.

LA
T

H
R

O
P

  A
V

E.

D
U

N
LO

P
 A

V
E.

SOUTH WATER 
TOWER PAINTING



PROJECT NAME
ESTIMATED 

TOTAL PROJECT 
COST 

VIP MFT WATER TIF GRANT TIF/GRANT TYPE 

2023 WM and Street Project $       2,985,000 $        933,000 $    2,052,000 REBUILD BOND

15th Street Sewer Separation $          467,000 $        107,000 $         360,000 CDBG

Van Buren Street Multi-Use Path 
Improvements

$          582,000 $        334,500 $        247,500 INVEST IN COOK

North Water Tower Painting $          987,000 $        987,000 BROWN TIF 

South Water Tower Painting $           80,000 $         80,000 ROOSEVELT TIF 

Commuter Bike Facilities $          112,000 $          11,000 $       101,000 ITEP

Alley Reconstruction $          546,000  $        376,000  $        170,000  

Lead Service Planning / IEPA Loan $            19,000  $        19,000  

Proposed 2023 Infrastructure Plan

2023  INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN5



PROJECT NAME
ESTIMATED 

TOTAL PROJECT 
COST 

VIP MFT WATER TIF GRANT TIF/GRANT TYPE 

North and South Water Tower Paving $            66,000  $           66,000  BROWN / 
ROOSEVELT TIF

Green Alley Maintenance $            18,000  $          18,000

Community Center Parking Lot $          102,000 $        102,000

Sidewalk Replacement Project $            48,000 $          48,000

Madison Street Upgrades $           300,000 $        300,000

2023 Capital Projects Design $           150,000 $        150,000

$      6,462,000 $   1,339,500 $    933,000 $   2,348,000 $  1,133,000 $  708,500 

Proposed 2023 Infrastructure Plan

2023  INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN6



DRAFT

Ferdinand Ave: 800-1100 Blocks Resurfacing; 1000-1100 Blocks 
WM                                                                       Wilcox St: 7600-
7700 Blocks Resurfacing & WM

Spring 2023 2,700,000$             15,000$                  270,000$                2,985,000$             933,000$                2,052,000$             REBUILD BOND

15th Street Sewer Separation March 2023 440,216$                26,110$                  466,326$                106,326$                360,000$                 CDBG 

Van Buren Street Multi-Use Path Improvements Summer 2023 509,344$                7,000$                    65,460$                  581,804$                334,304$                247,500$                INVEST IN COOK

North Water Tower Painting
Winter Shutdown, 
resume March 2023

970,000$                17,000$                  987,000$                987,000$                 BROWN TIF 

South Water Tower Painting
Winter Shutdown, 
resume March 2023

80,000$                  80,000$                  80,000$                   ROOSEVELT TIF 

Commuter Bike Facilities
3/10/2023 IDOT 
letting. Start const 
May 2023

101,250$                10,125$                  111,375$                11,138$                  100,237$                 ITEP 

Alley Reconstruction (Concrete): 1100 Circle Marengo (N/S 
portion), 950 Dunlop Lathrop

April 2023 458,700$                41,000$                  45,870$                  545,570$                375,570$                170,000$                

Lead Service Line Project Plan / IEPA Loan N/A 19,000$                  19,000$                  19,000$                  

North and South Tower Paving Summer 2023 60,000$                  3,000$                    3,000$                    66,000$                  66,000$                  
 BROWN TIF & 

ROOSEVELT TIF 

Green Alley Maintenance Summer 2023 18,000$                  18,000$                  18,000$                  

Community Center Parking Lot Resurfacing Summer/Fall 2023 85,000$                  8,500$                    8,500$                    102,000$                102,000$                 VIP 

Sidewalk Replacement Project Summer/Fall 2023 40,000$                  4,000$                    4,000$                    48,000$                  48,000$                  

Madison Street Upgrades Summer/Fall 2023 270,000$                15,000$                  15,000$                  300,000$                300,000$                

Des Plaines Ave Resurfacing - Madison to Roosevelt (IDOT)
1/20/2023 IDOT 
letting. Start const 
March 2023

 IDOT 

Roosevelt Road Resurfacing - Des Plaines to Harlem (IDOT)
1/20/2023 IDOT 
letting. Start const 
March 2023

 IDOT 

2024 Capital Project Design 150,000$                150,000$                150,000$                

Totals 5,732,510$             262,500$                465,065$                6,460,075$             1,339,012$             933,000$                2,347,326$             1,133,000$             707,737$                6,460,075$             

Available Funds

Balance

Grant Type2023 Draft Infrastructure Projects  Estimated Total 
Project Cost VIP Fund MFT Fund Water Fund TIF Fund Grant Fund Construction Design Eng. Const. Eng.

 Proposed 
Construction Start 

Date 

C:\Users\mamidei\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\M4PANQC7\Infrastructure Plan.2023.xlsx



DRAFT

Grant Type2023 Draft Infrastructure Projects  Estimated Total 
Project Cost VIP Fund MFT Fund Water Fund TIF Fund Grant Fund Construction Design Eng. Const. Eng.

 Proposed 
Construction Start 

Date 

NEAR TERM FUTURE PROJECTS

Parking Lot Resurfacing Project: West half Constitution Court 35,000$                  3,500$                    3,500$                    42,000$                  42,000$                  

Public Works Parking Lot Reconstruction -$                        

Totals 35,000$                  3,500$                    3,500$                    42,000$                  42,000$                  -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       

Pending Grant Applications

MWRD Stormwater: 13th Street Sewer, Circle to Elgin submitted 1/13/2023 1,000,000$             100,000$                100,000$                1,200,000$             700,000$                500,000$                 MWRD 

MWRD Green Infrastructure (GI) Alley Reconstruction (Green): 800 
& 900 Circle - Marengo

September 2023 
application deadline

705,000$                70,500$                  70,500$                  846,000$                493,500$                352,500$                 MWRD 

CDBG 2023 Program Year - 15th Street Sewer Separation, 
Marengo to Elgin

March 2023 
application deadline

375,000$                37,500$                  37,500$                  450,000$                262,500$                187,500$                 CDBG 

Capital Improvements to Village Property - Build Illinois Bond Fund 
/ DCEO

1,500,000$             1,500,000$             1,500,000$              DCEO 

Jackson Blvd. Traffic Calming Improvements 200,000$                200,000$                200,000$                 DCEO 

Jackson Blvd. (Des Plaines - Harlem) Watermain and Resurfacing 2,000,000$             2,000,000$             1,200,000$             800,000$                
 INVEST in America 

Act 

C:\Users\mamidei\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\M4PANQC7\Infrastructure Plan.2023.xlsx



AGENDA MEMO 

Village Council Meeting 

Forest Park, Illinois 

February 10, 2023 

 

Issue Statement  

Request for Village Council action related to the adoption of an ordinance amending Section 2-7 of Chapter 7 of 
Title 2 of the Forest Park Municipal Code governing the Board of Health previously adopted on March 25, 2002 
by ordinance O-10-02. 
 

Background 

The original code which created the Board of Health limited members to residents. This amendment seeks to 
waive the residency requirement for members with technical training or knowledge, at the discretion of the 
mayor and commissioner of public health and safety. The amendment also seeks to clarify the meeting 
schedule. The commission’s duties have been updated to give the commission framework in 
which it should operate regarding public health, including physical and mental health, in the Village of Forest 
Park. 
 
Attachments 
- Village Code amendment resolution concerning the Board of Health 



 

ORDINANCE NO. O-_______-23 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 2-7  
OF CHAPTER 7 OF TITLE 2 OF THE  

MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, 

as follows: 

Section 1.  Section 2-7, entitled “BOARD OF HEALTH,” of Title 2, entitled “Boards 

and Commissions,” of the Code of the Village of Forest Park (“Code”) is hereby amended as 

follows: 

2-7: BOARD OF HEALTH 
 
2-7-1: BOARD CREATED; MEMBERS: 
There is hereby created for the village a board of health, which shall consist of five (5) members, 
one of whom shall serve as president chair of the board and one as secretary of the board. All 
members shall be residents of the village and shall serve for a period of five (5) years. The 
members shall be appointed by the mayor upon the recommendation of the commissioner of 
health and safety, by and with the consent of the village council, to serve without compensation.  
The residency requirement for the board of health shall not apply to any board member who, at 
the discretion of the mayor and commissioner of public health & safety, possesses technical 
training, knowledge, or experience which will enhance the composition of the board. 
 
2-7-2: MEETINGS: 
Meetings of the board shall be held monthly at such times and places as the board shall from 
time to time direct. 
 
2-7-23: DUTIES: 
The board shall adopt such rules and regulations as it may deem proper for the conduct of its 
work, and shall make recommendations to the village council on have the management and 
control of all matters pertaining and things relating to the public health of the village, including 
but not limited to mental and physical health. and shall also exercise those duties and powers 
conferred upon it by the statutes of the state of Illinois (1) and the ordinances of the village. 
 

(1) 65 ILCS 5/11-16-1 
 
 Section 2. The corporate authorities of the Village intend that this Ordinance will be 

made part of the Village Code and that sections of this Ordinance can be renumbered or 

relettered and can be changed to “Section,” “Article,” Chapter” or some other appropriate word 

or phrase to accomplish codification, and typographical errors can be corrected with the 

authorization of the Village Attorney, or his or her designee. 



 

 Section 3. All parts of the Village Code in conflict with the terms or provisions of 

this Ordinance shall be and the same are hereby amended or repealed to the extent of such 

conflict, and said Village Code and all other existing ordinances shall otherwise remain in full 

force and effect. 

 Section 4. If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 

Ordinance or any part thereof is, for any reason, held to be unconstitutional or invalid or 

ineffective by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or 

effectiveness of the remaining portions of this Ordinance, or any part thereof.  The corporate 

authorities hereby declare that they would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, 

paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more 

sections, subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases be declared 

unconstitutional, invalid or ineffective. 

Section 5. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval 

and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 

PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 13th day of 

February, 2023. 

 AYES: ___________________________________________ 

 NAYS: ___________________________________________ 

 ABSENT: _________________________________________ 

 

        APPROVED: 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
        Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



























1112704.1 

 
ORDINANCE NO. ________________-23 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE  
EXECUTION OF AN ANNUAL LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH  

VIGILANT SOLUTIONS, LLC FOR PROCESSING AND  
INTEGRATION OF LICENSE PLATE READER INFORMATION 

 
 

 WHEREAS, Section 1-8A-5A of the Village Code of the Village of Forest Park 

authorizes the corporate authorities of the Village of Forest Park (“Village”) to waive, by fourth-

fifths vote of the corporate authorities, the competitive bidding requirements of the Village Code; 

and 

 WHEREAS, Vigilant Solutions, LLC (“Vigilant”) has provided and currently provides 

license plat readers, maintenance and support services to the Village and proposes to provide 

additional processing and information integration services to the Village (“Services”); and 

 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village believe that, due to its experience, 

skill set and existing satisfactory relationship with the Village, Vigilant is uniquely qualified to 

provide such additional cost effective Services to the Village; and 

 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village find it advisable, necessary and in 

the best interest of the public to waive the competitive bidding requirements of Section 1-8A-5A 

of the Village Code and approve and authorize the execution of an annual license and integration 

agreement (“Agreement”) with Vigilant for the Services.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the 

Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1-8A-5A of the Village Code, the 

corporate authorities hereby waive advertising for competitive bids and approve and authorize 



1112704.1 

the Mayor’s execution of the Agreement with Vigilant for the Services, a copy of which is 

attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof, subject to Vigilant executing the 

Contractor’s Certification Form, attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof. 

 Section 2. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption as 
provided by law. 

 PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 13th day 

of February, 2023. 

 AYES:___________________________________________ 

 NAYS:___________________________________________ 

 ABSENT:_________________________________________ 

 

        APPROVED: 
 
 

______________________________ 
        Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 

  



1112704.1 

EXHIBIT A 
AGREEMENT 

 



 

 

Vigilant Solutions, LLC 

P.O Box 841001 

Dallas, Texas 75202 

(P) 925-398-2079     (F) 925-398-2113 
 

Issued To: Forest Park Police Department - Attention: Daniel Miller Date: 01-23-23 

Project Name: Avigilon LPR Integration - LEARN Quote ID: SVB-0019-02 

  

PROJECT QUOTATION 

We at Vigilant Solutions, LLC are pleased to quote the following systems for the above referenced project: 

Avigilon Camera Integration 

Priced Per Camera/Year 

Qty Item # Description 

(4) 3PC-1SL 

$500.00 Each 

Single competitive camera license - Central Server processing 

● Annual single camera license for 3rd party camera with central server processing 

● Central server sold seperately 

Subtotal Price (Excluding sales tax) $2,000.00 

1 Time Free LEARN Account Setup 

Qty Item # Description 

(1) VS-LEARN--H 

$0.00 Each 

Vigilant Hosted/Managed Centralized LPR server via LEARN 

● Vigilant hosted/managed LEARN account 

o Central repository for all LPR data acquired by each LPR system 

● Includes Vigilant's suite of LPR data analytics via online web access 

o Automated CarDetector software update management 

o Plate searching, mapping, data mining utilities 

o Stakeout, Associate Analysis and Locate Analysis 

o Full administrative security with management auditing 

● Plug-N-Play an unlimited number of CarDetector LPR systems 

o Requires NO server hardware, NO server maintenance 

● Requires Vigilant Enterprise Service Agreement contract 

Subtotal Price (Excluding sales tax) $0.00 

  
Quote Notes: 
  

1. All prices are quoted in USD and will remain firm and in effect for 60 days. 

2. Returns or exchanges will incur a 15% restocking fee. 

3. Orders requiring immediate shipment may be subject to a 15% QuickShip fee. 

4. Central compute resource hardware sold separately unless explicitly stated above. 

5. This Quote is provided per our conversation & details given by you - not in accordance to any written specification. 

Page 1 of 4



 

6. This Quote does not include anything outside the above stated bill of materials. 

7. Motorola's Master Customer Agreement and all applicable addenda, available at 

https://www.motorolasolutions.com/en_us/about/legal.html shall govern the products and services, and is incorporated 

herein by this reference. 

  
Quoted by: Stuart Blowers - Inside Sales Manager - 312-758-9723 - stuart.blowers@motorolasolutions.com 
  

Total Price $2,000.00 (Excluding sales tax) 

 

Page 2 of 4



 

 

 

Contract Terms Acknowledgement 

 

This Contract Terms Acknowledgement (this “Acknowledgement”) is entered into between Vigilant Solutions, LLC, a 

Delaware corporation (“Vigilant”) and the entity set forth in the signature block below (“Customer”). Vigilant and 

Customer will each be referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”.  

 

1. Contract Terms Acknowledgement.  Customer acknowledges that they have received Statements of Work that 

describe the services provided on this Agreement. Parties acknowledge and agree that the terms of the Master Customer 

Agreement (“MCA”),   including all applicable Addenda, shall apply to the Services set forth in the accompanying Ordering 

Document. Vigilant's Terms and Conditions, available at https://www.motorolasolutions.com/en_us/about/legal.html, 

including the Master Customer Agreement, is incorporated herein by this reference. By signing the signature block below, 

Customer certifies that it has read and agrees to the provisions set forth in this Acknowledgement and the signatory to 

this Acknowledgement represents and warrants that he or she has the requisite authority to bind Customer to this 

Acknowledgement. 

 

2. Entire Agreement. This Acknowledgement, including the accompanying Ordering Document, supplements the 

terms of the MCA, applicable Addenda, and Ordering Documents entered between the Parties and forms a part of the 

Parties’ Agreement. 

 

3. Disputes; Governing Law.  Sections 12 – Disputes of the MCA is hereby incorporated into this Acknowledgement 

mutatis mutandis. 

 

4. Execution and Amendments. This Acknowledgement may be executed in multiple counterparts and will have the 

same legal force and effect as if the Parties had executed it as a single document. The Parties may sign in writing or by 

electronic signature. An electronic signature, facsimile copy, or computer image of a signature will be treated, and will 

have the same effect as an original signature, and will have the same effect, as an original signed copy of this document. 

This Acknowledgement may be amended or modified only by a written instrument signed by authorized representatives 

of both Parties.  

 

The Parties hereby enter into this Acknowledgement as of the last signature date below. 

 

 

Customer: ______________________________ 

 

 

Signature:  ______________________________  

 

Name: ______________________________  

 

Title: ______________________________  

 

Email: ______________________________  

 

Date: ______________________________ 

Page 3 of 4



 

Offer Addenda – LinC / Non-MSI LPR Cameras 

 

Non-MSI LPR Camera Services (LinC), Fees and Payment Provision 

 

I. License Key: The LinC Camera License Key (CLK) means an electronic license key that will permit the use 

of MSI’s LPR software to be used with non-MSI branded / non-MSI issued LPR cameras (one CLK per 

camera) and select MSI Software Products. 

 

II. Offer Services: This Offer includes the following Software Services / Software Products: 

 

• LPR Software Services / Software Products: 

o MSI Managed/Hosted LPR Account 

o CarDetector Fixed LPR Software w/ all updates 

o Target Alert Service 

• Optional Services  

o Cellular Data Service (Optional / Additional) 

 

III. Annual Service Fees (CLKs): The Service Fees applicable to each Annual Service Period shall be as follows: 

 

IV.Annual Fee Schedule 

LinC CLK (Edge Camera) $750.00 

LinC CLK (Server Camera) $500.00 

Annual Cellular Data Plan per Camera (Optional) $1,200.00 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has agreed to this rate sheet as of the Signature Date.  

 

Company Name:  ________________________________________ 

 

Signer’s Name:  ________________________________________ 

 

Signer’s Email:   ________________________________________ 

 

Signature Date:  ________________________________________ 

 

 

Signature:    ________________________________________ 

 



1112704.1 



1112704.1 



1112704.1 



1112704.1 

 

  



1112704.1 

EXHIBIT B 
CONTRACTOR’S CERTIFICATION FORM 

 
The assurances hereinafter made by VIGILANT SOLUTIONS, LLC (hereinafter the 

“Contractor”) are each a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed by the 
Village of Forest Park in entering into the contract with the Contractor.  The Village of Forest 
Park may terminate the contract if it is later determined that the Contractor rendered a false or 
erroneous assurance. 

 

I, ________________________, hereby certify that I am the ____________________ of 
(Name of Owner or Officer)      (Title or Office)  

VIGILANT SOLUTIONS, LLC, and as such, hereby represent and warrant to the VILLAGE OF 
FOREST PARK, a municipal corporation, (hereinafter the “Village”) that the Contractor and its 
shareholders holding more than five percent (5%) of the outstanding shares of the corporation, its 
officers and directors are: 

  
(a) not delinquent in the payment of taxes to the Illinois Department of Revenue in 

accordance with 65 ILCS 5/11-42.1-1; 
 
(b) not barred from contracting as a result of a violation of either Section 33E-3 

(bid rigging) or 33E-4 (bid-rotating) of the Criminal Code of 1961 (720 ILCS 
5/33E-3 and 5/33E-4); 

 
 (c) not in default, as defined in 5 ILCS 385/2, on an educational loan, as defined in 

5 ILCS 385/1. 
 
  In addition, the Contractor hereby represents and warrants to the Village, that:  
 

(A) the Contractor, pursuant to 30 ILCS 580/1 et seq. (“Drug-Free Workplace Act”), 
will provide a drug-free workplace by: 

 
   (1) Publishing a statement: 
    
   a.   Notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 

dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance including 
cannabis, is prohibited in the Contractor's workplace; 

 
 b. Specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for 

violations of such prohibition; 
 

 c. Notifying the employee that, as a condition of employment on such 
Contract, the employee will; 

  
 i.   Abide by the terms of the statement; 
  



1112704.1 

 ii.   Notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction 
for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five 
(5) days after such conviction; 

 
(2) Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about: 

 
    a. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
     

b. the Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
  
c. any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee 

assistance program; and 
 
    d.  the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug 

violations; 
     

(3) Making it a requirement to give a copy of the statement required by 
Subsection (A)(1) to each employee engaged in the performance of the 
Contract, and to post the statement in a prominent place in the workplace; 

 
(4) Notifying the Village within ten (10) days after receiving notice under 

paragraph(A)(1)e from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice 
of such conviction; 

 
(5) Imposing a sanction on, or requiring the satisfactory participation in a drug 

abuse assistance or rehabilitation program by any employee who is so 
convicted, as required by 30 ILCS 580/5; 

 
(6) Assisting employees in selecting a course of action in the event drug 

counseling treatment and rehabilitation is required and indicating that a 
trained referral team is in place; 

 
(7) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace 

through implementation of this section;  
 
(B) the Contractor has not excluded and will not exclude from participation in, denied 

the benefits of, subjected to discrimination under, or denied employment to any 
person in connection with any activity funded under the contract on the basis of 
race, color, age, religion, national origin, disability, or sex; 

 
(C) no Village officer, spouse or dependent child of a Village officer, agent on behalf 

of any Village officer or trust in which a Village officer, the spouse or dependent 
child of a Village officer or a beneficiary is a holder of any interest in the 
Contractor; or, if the Contractor’s stock is traded on a nationally recognized 
securities market, that no Village officer, spouse or dependent child of a Village 
officer, agent on behalf of any Village officer or trust in which a Village officer, 



1112704.1 

the spouse or dependent child of a Village officer or a beneficiary is a holder of 
more than one percent (1%) of the Contractor, but if any Village officer, spouse or 
dependent child of a Village officer, agent on behalf of any Village officer or trust 
in which a Village officer, the spouse or dependent child of a Village officer or a 
beneficiary is a holder of less than one percent (1%) of such Contractor, the 
Contractor has disclosed to the Village in writing the name(s) of the holder of 
such interest; 

 
(D) no officer or employee of the Village has solicited any gratuity, discount, 

entertainment, hospitality, loan, forbearance, or other tangible or intangible item 
having monetary value including, but not limited to, cash, food and drink, and 
honoraria for speaking engagements related to or attributable to the government 
employment or the official position of the employee or officer from the 
Contractor in violation of Section 2-8A-3 of the Municipal Code of the Village of 
Forest Park;  

 
(E) the Contractor has not given to any officer or employee of the Village any 

gratuity, discount, entertainment, hospitality, loan, forbearance, or other tangible 
or intangible item having monetary value including, but not limited to, cash, food 
and drink, and honoraria for speaking engagements related to or attributable to the 
government employment or the official position of the employee or officer in 
violation of Section 2-8A-3 of the Municipal Code of the Village of Forest Park; 

 
(F) neither it nor any of its principals, shareholders, members, partners, or affiliates, 

as applicable, is a person or entity named as a Specially Designated National and 
Blocked Person (as defined in Presidential Executive Order 13224) and that it is 
not acting, directly or indirectly, for or on behalf of a Specially Designated 
National and Blocked Person and that the Contractor and its principals, 
shareholders, members, partners, or affiliates, as applicable, are not, directly or 
indirectly, engaged in, and are not facilitating, the transactions contemplated by 
this Agreement on behalf of any person or entity named as a Specially Designated 
National and Blocked Person;  

 
(G) the Contractor acknowledges that, pursuant to the provisions of the Illinois 

Freedom of Information Act, (5 ILCS 140/1 et seq.), documents or records 
prepared or used in relation to work performed under this agreement are 
considered a public record of the Village; and therefore, within thirty (30) days of 
completion of the work required of the Contractor under this agreement, the 
Contractor shall produce to the Village, in electronic format, all records that 
directly relate to the governmental function performed by the Contractor under 
this agreement at no additional cost to the Village; and furthermore, the 
Contractor shall review its records and promptly produce to the Village any 
additional records in the Contractor’s possession which the Village requires in 
order to properly respond to a request made pursuant to the Illinois Freedom of 
Information Act (5 ILCS 140/1 et seq.), and the Contractor shall produce to the 



1112704.1 

Village such records within three (3) business days of a request for such records 
from the Village at no additional cost to the Village. 

 
  If any certification made by the Contractor or term or condition in this contract changes, 
the Contractor shall notify the Village in writing within seven (7) days. 

 
 

Dated: ____________, 2023  Contractor:   VIGILANT SOLUTIONS, LLC 
 

By: ____________________________________ 
       _________________ , ______________ 

(Name of Owner or Officer   (Title or Office)  
 

 STATE OF _____________  ) 
) ss. 

 COUNTY OF ___________ ) 
 

I, the undersigned, a notary public in and for the State and County aforesaid, hereby 
certify that ___________________________ known to me to be the _____________________ 

 (Name of Owner or Officer)      (Title or Office)  
of Vigilant Solutions, LLC, appeared before me this day in person and, being first duly sworn on 
oath, acknowledged that he executed the foregoing certification as his free act and deed. 
 
 Dated: ____________, 2023 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Notary Public 

 
 

 
 



AGENDA MEMO 

Village Council Meeting 

Forest Park, Illinois 

February 13, 2023 

Issue Statement 

Request for Village Council action to approve the establishment of a 50/50 Sidewalk 
Replacement Program. 

Background 

The Village of Forest Park makes an effort every construction season to replace sidewalk squares 
throughout the Village as much as the current budget will allow.  The sidewalk facilities in the 
Village are aging.  Those areas that pose a tripping hazard need to be addressed.  Each year the 
Public Works Director compiles a list of troublesome areas and then joins them with a list of 
sidewalk squares that have been requested for repair by residents and business owners.  The 
Director verifies that there is imminent danger at the requested areas.  This year, we would like 
to take a portion of allocated monies and allow it to be used for a 50/50 program.  We would 
allow for $10,000 to be allocated for a shared cost in areas that are not necessarily an imminent 
danger, but are more of a cosmetic or small crack repair.  The remainder of the budgeted monies 
(approximately $35,000) will be used to address safety situations.  Once a final list is finished 
and a proposed cost has been attached, it is to be determined where the funding will come from 
to complete all repairs; generally, VIP monies are used. 

Solution 

Sidewalk repair funding has come from water main projects in the past.  Since the funding for 
these projects have not come from grants and have been paid for in-house, the Village was able 
to take any extra funding from the back end of a water main project and allocate it to sidewalk 
repair.  Unfortunately, with the new lead water service line mandate, the Village is spending 
additional money on water main projects to meet the new lead replacement standards.  This does 
not allow for any leftover funding at the end of a project.  The Village would need to look 
elsewhere for funding. 

In 2022, the Public Works Director implemented a Sidewalk Repair Program in order to 
maintain a steady pace in replacing dangerous (significant heaving, cracking, vertical 
displacement) sidewalk areas.  Funds were allocated from the VIP budget and directed towards 
this new program.  Due to a lack in funding from other sources, it is the Director’s 
recommendation that the Village continue to use VIP funding in 2023 to pay for this year’s 
sidewalk repairs.  Most of the funding should be allocated towards dangerous areas (as noted 
above), while a portion of it be used for the proposed 50/50 cost share program. 



1109084_1  

RESOLUTION NO. R-___________-23 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE VILLAGE OF  
FOREST PARK 50/50 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT PROGRAM 

 
 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village of Forest Park (“Village”) have 

periodically offered and implemented a joint effort with residential homeowners in the Village 

for a 50/50 Sidewalk Replacement Program (“Program”); and 

 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village have determined that a significant 

public interest will continue to be served by the Village to affirm and continue the Program for 

residential homeowners within the Village; and 

 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village have promulgated certain guidelines 

and standards for the implementation of and application for the Program, a copy of which is 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by specific reference. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The facts and statements contained in the preamble clauses to this 

Resolution are found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Resolution. 

 Section 2. The guidelines and standards for the implementation of and application for 

the Program, substantially in the form attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit A, are 

hereby adopted by the corporate authorities of the Village. 

 Section 3. The officials, officers and employees of the Village are hereby authorized 

to take such further actions as are necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution 

and the Program. 



1109084_1  

 Section 4. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and approval as provided by law. 

AYES:  ___________________ 
 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 
 APPROVED by me this 13th day of February, 2023. 
 
 
             
      _______________________________________ 
       Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
And published in pamphlet form 
This ______ day of February, 2023. 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 
 
  



1109084_1  

EXHIBIT A 

Village of Forest Park 50/50 Sidewalk Replacement Program 

 

 



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
7343 W. 15th St. Forest Park, IL. 60130

708-366-4876      Fax: 708-366-3482
Email: publicworks@forestpark.net

50/50 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT PROGRAM 

The Village of Forest Park, in a joint effort with homeowners, is offering a 50/50 Sidewalk
Replacement Program. The goal of the program is to improve the quality of our pedestrian walkway 
system within the Village. 

WHO PAYS TO REPLACE SIDEWALK? 

Under the 50/50 Sidewalk Replacement Program, half of the cost is paid by the Village and half of the cost 
is paid by the homeowner. At this time, the homeowner's cost is approximately $15.00 per square foot of 
sidewalk to be replaced.   

HOW IS PARTICIPATION DETERMINED? 

Residents who wish to be included in the 50/50 Sidewalk Replacement Program should fill out the 
attached application.  Annual funding for the program is limited and is on a first come first served basis.  
After the application is received, the sidewalk is inspected by Village staff to determine if it meets the 
criteria for participation.  If the requested sidewalk is eligible and funds are available, a bill will be sent to 
the homeowner. 

WHAT IS THE CRITERIA FOR ELIGIBILITY? 

Firstly, sidewalk that has severe surface deterioration, has significant settlement or heaving, has cracking 
exceeding 1/2 inches horizontally, or has vertical displacement greater than 3/4 inches will get 100% funding from 
the Village. In addition, it is sometimes necessary to replace additional sidewalk squares in order to correct these 
problems.  Sidewalk that is requested for replacement that is for cosmetic purposes or to repair small cracks that 
are not trip hazards will qualify for a 50/50 cost share with the Village.

WHO PERFORMS THE WORK? 

The 50/50 Sidewalk Replacement Program is advertised and competitive bids are obtained for the entire package. 
For this reason, all work done under this program must be performed by the contractor who has been awarded the 
project by the Village Council.   

WHEN IS THE WORK TO BE DONE? 

The contractor will begin replacements in the summer/fall.  They will continue until they have completed all of the 
eligible sites or until the allotted funding has been spent.  

WHO SHOULD I CALL IF I HAVE ANY QUESTIONS? 

The Department of Public Works can answer any questions about the program.  
Please call us at (708) 366-4876 between the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m., Monday through Friday.



 50/50 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT PROGRAM APPLICATION 

If you wish to participate in the 50/50 Sidewalk Replacement Program, this form must be completed 

and returned ASAP.  Please send no money at this time!  After an inspector has evaluated your 
request, a bill will be sent for the proposed work.  No work will be done until a check is received by the 

Village. Forms 

should be returned no later than June 1st to:

Village of Forest Park
Department of Public Works 

7343 West 15th Street
Forest Park, Illinois 60130

NAME________________________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS____________________________________________________________ 

ZIP CODE __________ DAY TIME PHONE_______________________

To assist the Village in evaluating your request, please mark the squares of sidewalk that you would like 
replaced with a paint dot in one corner of the square(s).  In addition, please take a few moments to mark 
the area of concern on the sketch below.  Indicate where your house is to help the inspector locate the
squares that need replacing. 

1012

Marengo Ave.

Tree

Tree

  8 

H
a

r
v
a
r
r
d

S
t 



 50/50 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT PROGRAM APPLICATION 

If you wish to participate in the 50/50 Sidewalk Replacement Program, this form must be completed 

and returned ASAP.  Please send no money at this time!  After an inspector has evaluated your request, 
a bill will be sent for the proposed work.  No work will be done until a check is received by the Village.  

Forms should be returned no later than June 1st to:

Village of Forest Park
Department of Public Works 

7343 West 15th Street
Forest Park, Illinois  60130

NAME________________________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS____________________________________________________________ 

ZIP CODE ____________ DAY TIME PHONE_______________________

EMAIL ADDRESS____________________________________________________________ 
(If digital invoice is preferred) 

To assist the Village in evaluating your request, please mark the squares of sidewalk that you would like 
replaced with a paint dot in one corner of the square(s).  In addition, please take a few moments to mark the 
area of concern on the sketch below.  Indicate where your house is to help the inspector locate the 
squares that need replacing. 



Agenda Memo 

Village Council Meeting 

Forest Park, Illinois 

February 13, 2023 

Issue Statement 

Request for Village Council Action: Adoption of a Resolution Approving an Agreement for Purchase by 
the Village of Forest Park and Its Agent, DACRA Adjudication Systems, LLC D/B/A DACRA Tech, LLC, of 
Computer Stored Information of the Illinois Secretary of State 

Background 

Every few years, the Village purchases real-time vehicle registration data, specific to the Village of Forest 
Park, from the Office of the Illinois Secretary of State.  This data is then uploaded into the Village’s 
vehicle registration software system which is used to administer its annual sales of vehicle licenses 
pursuant to Section 6-2 of the Village Code.  As the years go on, local vehicle registration data becomes 
obsolete as people move in and out of town coupled with vehicles being sold and or traded in.  In order 
to receive this data, the Village, along with its software vendor, needs to enter into agreements with the 
Office of the Illinois Secretary of State that describe how the data will be used, who will have access to 
same, and other security considerations.  The cost being charged to the Village for said data amounts to 
$500. 

Attachments 

- Required Certified Statements by the Village and DACRA Tech, LLC regarding use; 
- Office of Illinois Secretary of State Data Agreement 
- Resolution Approving Agreement 

 

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/forestparkil/latest/forestpark_il/0-0-0-4495


1110220-1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. R-_______-23 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE  

BY THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK AND ITS AGENT,  

DACRA ADJUDICATION SYSTEMS, LLC D/B/A DACRA TECH, LLC,  

OF COMPUTER STORED INFORMATION  

OF THE ILLINOIS SECRETARY OF STATE 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, 

as follows: 

 Section 1.  That certain “Agreement for Purchase by the Village of Forest Park and its 

agent, DACRA Adjudication Systems, LLC d/b/a DACRA Tech, LLC of Computer Stored 

Information of the Illinois Secretary of State” (“Agreement”) between the Village of Forest 

Park and the Illinois Secretary of State, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” is 

hereby approved. 

 Section 2. The Mayor of the Village of Forest Park is hereby authorized and 

directed to execute said Agreement.  

 Section 3.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and approval as required by law. 

 ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 13th 

day of February, 2023. 

AYES:  ___________________ 

 

NAYS:  ___________________ 

 

ABSENT:  _________________ 

     APPROVED by me this 13th day of February, 2023. 

 

 

 

     _____________________________________ 

     Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 

And published in pamphlet form 

This ____ day of February, 2023. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



1110220-1 

EXHIBIT A 

 

AGREEMENT 



Village of Forest Park and DACRA Tech, LLC to 2025 Page 1 

 

AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE BY 
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

AND ITS AGENT, DACRA ADJUDICATION SYSTEMS, LLC D/B/A DACRA TECH, LLC 
OF COMPUTER STORED INFORMATION OF THE ILLINOIS SECRETARY OF STATE 

 
 

1. This Agreement is dated as of the latest date of signature by the Parties (the “Effective Date”) between 
Alexi Giannoulias, Secretary of State of Illinois, in his official capacity and not as an individual, with his 
principal address at 312 Howlett Building, Springfield, Illinois 62756, hereinafter known as “SOS,” the 
Village of Forest Park, with its principal address located at 517 Des Plaines Avenue, Forest Park, Illinois 
60130, and its agent, Dacra Adjudication Systems, LLC d/b/a  Dacra Tech, LLC, with its principal 
address located at 10275 W. Higgins Road, Suite 490, Rosemont, Illinois 60018, hereinafter known as 
“Dacra.” The Village of Forest Park and Dacra shall be referred to as “Purchasers.”  This Agreement 
shall remain in effect for two (2) years from the Effective Date, unless terminated pursuant to the terms 
of this Agreement.    
 

2. Purchasers apply to SOS, and SOS agrees to provide to Purchasers, information from the SOS 
computer files, specifically, vehicle registration data limited to owner’s name, owner’s address, vehicle 
make, vehicle model, vehicle year, vehicle color, vehicle license plate number, and license plate 
expiration date, for all vehicles registered in the Village of Forest Park, zip code 60130, as outlined in 
Exhibit A-1 and Exhibit A-2 to this Agreement.   
 

3. Purchasers agree to pay all applicable statutory fees in effect, and currently prescribed by 625 ILCS 
5/2-123 of the Illinois Vehicle Code entitled, “Sale and Distribution of Information” and 92 Ill. Adm. Code 
1002.  The actual cost of said information is to be specified in a separate communication among the 
Parties and determined when SOS has completed the requested work.  Payment shall be made to 
SOS before delivery of the information to Purchasers and shall be made by certified check, business 
check, money order, approved credit cards, or other methods of payment approved by SOS.  
  

4. Purchasers agree that they shall obtain the data from SOS, via secure FTP, on an “AS IS” basis.  All 
SOS data transferred among the Parties must be transferred via secure FTP.  Purchasers acknowledge 
that SOS compiles the data as required by statute for its own public purposes and that by providing 
such data to Purchasers, pursuant to this Agreement, SOS is providing only access convenient to 
Purchasers.  SOS assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of the data and disclaims any liability for 
damages, costs, and/or expenses, including, without limitation, consequential damages, arising or 
resulting from any inaccurate data.   
 

5. Purchasers warrant that the use of SOS data is in accordance with Illinois and federal laws and shall 
not be used for criminal or immoral purposes.  Purchasers shall furnish Certified Statements of Use(s) 
(in the form of sworn and notarized affidavits) setting forth the specific uses being made of the 
information received from and subject to the approval of SOS, which shall be incorporated into this 
Agreement as Exhibit A-1 and Exhibit A-2.  Purchasers agree to neither deviate from nor alter 
the Certified Statements of Use(s) without the prior express written consent of SOS. This 
Agreement authorizes SOS or its representatives to audit Purchasers, including any and all 
computer systems and documents to verify that the data is being used only in accordance with 
the Certified Statements of Use(s).  Unauthorized use and/or unauthorized access to or release 
of SOS data is a material breach and cause for immediate termination of the Agreement. 
 

6. Purchasers agree that information received shall not be made available to other persons, firms, 
corporations, partnerships, or other entities without the prior express written consent of SOS, 
except as authorized by this Agreement. 
 

7. Pursuant to 92 Illinois Administrative Code 1002.60, should Purchasers redisclose any personal 
information obtained from SOS in any manner allowed under this Agreement, Purchasers shall, for a 
minimum of five (5) years, keep records identifying each person or entity that received such information 
and the permitted purpose for which the information was disclosed.  Purchasers shall make said 
records available to SOS upon request by SOS.  Further, if any personal information is redisclosed, 



Village of Forest Park and DACRA Tech, LLC to 2025 Page 2 

 

then the provisions of the Federal Driver’s Privacy Protection Act are applicable. 18 U.S.C. 2721 et. 
seq. (hereinafter referred to as “DPPA”). 

 

8. Breach by Purchasers of any of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be deemed a material 
breach of this Agreement and shall be cause for immediate termination of this Agreement. 

 

9. This Agreement authorizes SOS or its representatives access to Purchasers’ computer systems to 
audit, verify, and assess security controls.  Failure to provide adequate security controls is a 
material breach and cause for immediate termination of this Agreement. 
 

10. All SOS information, including but not limited to SOS information furnished to Purchasers, is 
for the EXCLUSIVE use of Purchasers and shall not be provided to anyone not a Party to this 
Agreement without the prior express written consent of SOS.  This paragraph does not prohibit 
Purchasers from using the information in the manner set forth in their Certified Statements of Use(s). 
PURCHASERS SHALL ABIDE BY AND ARE SUBJECT TO THE PRIVACY GUIDELINES IN THE 
DPPA.  BREACH OF THIS PROHIBITION SHALL BE DEEMED A MATERIAL BREACH AND SHALL 
RESULT IN THE DENIAL OF THE SALE OF INFORMATION TO PURCHASERS FOR A TERM OF 
FIVE (5) YEARS, respectively.  Purchasers agree that each of their respective employees who will be 
granted access to SOS information shall be given a copy of the attached DPPA describing the limitation 
on the dissemination of this information and of the civil and criminal penalties for violating the DPPA. 
 

11. Dacra agrees to carry insurance policies in amounts sufficient to cover potential liabilities arising out of 
the provision of services under this Agreement.   Dacra shall provide an insurance certificate(s) naming 
SOS as an additional insured on the General Liability Coverage, if applicable, Professional Liability 
Coverage and Cyber Liability Coverage, and shall provide the insurance certificate(s) with evidence of 
additional insured status and all required coverages prior to the execution of this Agreement.  Insurance 
shall not limit Dacra’s obligations to indemnify, defend or settle any and all claims. 
 

12.  Dacra shall procure and maintain the following insurance coverages throughout the term of this 
Agreement and any renewals thereof: 
 

a. Professional Liability Coverage – Errors and Omissions insurance covering errors, 
omissions, or negligence in the provision of services under this Agreement with 
limits of at least: 

• $1,000,000 each occurrence 

• $2,000,000 aggregate 
 

b. Cyber Liability or Data/Privacy Protection insurance with limits of at least: 

• $1,000,000 each occurrence  

• $2,000,000 aggregate 
 

13. Prior to the execution of this Agreement,  Dacra shall provide its latest Service Organization Control 
SOC 2, Type II report completed by a certified auditing agency, as well as any gap letters required to 
cover stated controls for the applicable annual period, not to exceed three (3) months, via mail or email, 
to Security Administrator, Department of Information Technology, 2701 South Dirksen Parkway, 
Springfield, Illinois 62723, securityadministrator@ilsos.gov.  During the term of this Agreement, Dacra 
shall provide a copy of its annual SOC 2, Type II reports when said reports are certified and published 
and upon request from SOS. 
 

14. As a condition precedent of this Agreement, Dacra agrees to complete the SOS Network Security 
Assessment and return the same to SOS prior to the execution of this Agreement. 
 

15. Prior to the execution of this Agreement, and upon request by SOS, Purchasers shall provide to SOS 
the names, addresses and phone numbers of all persons responsible for managing SOS data or 
otherwise executing the provisions of this Agreement on behalf of Purchasers. Only persons whose 
names appear on that list may view, handle or access SOS data.  Purchasers must immediately notify 
SOS of any changes in personnel that would affect this list. 
 

mailto:securityadministrator@ilsos.gov


Village of Forest Park and DACRA Tech, LLC to 2025 Page 3 

 

 
16. Purchasers shall adhere to the Data Processing Confidentiality Act. 30 ILCS 585 et. seq.  Purchasers 

agree not to use, resell, furnish, publish on the internet or otherwise make available any information 
supplied by SOS pursuant to this Agreement for any unauthorized reason, including but not limited to, 
commercial solicitation purposes to contact individuals for advertising, offering for sale, marketing or 
sale of products or services; or identifying potential employees, except for the United States Armed 
Forces; or to update, enhance or verify any information that may then be sold, offered or otherwise 
distributed to any user to directly or indirectly use such information to contact individuals for advertising, 
offering for sale, marketing or sale of products or services as set forth by 92 Illinois Administrative Code 
1002.42. A violation of this provision shall result in SOS’s denial of sale of information to Purchasers 
for a term of five (5) years and a fine of not more than $10,000 pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3571, 
respectively.   
 

17. Purchasers acknowledge and agree that SOS data shall not be transferred nor accessed outside 
of the United States, electronically or otherwise. 
 

18. Purchasers agree to indemnify and to hold SOS, its officers, agents and employees, harmless from 
and against any and all liabilities, demands, claims, suits, losses, damages, causes of action, fines or 
judgments, including costs, attorneys’ and witness’ fees, and expenses incident thereto, relating to 
unauthorized access to and/or release of personal information resulting from the acts, omissions, 
negligence or misconduct of Purchasers and/or Purchasers’ respective employees in the performance 
of this Agreement.  Should Purchasers misuse any SOS resources or data or have a breach of any of 
the data and/or computer systems that compromises the security of SOS data that results in SOS 
having to notify its customers of the misuse or compromise of their information, Purchasers shall bear 
all notification costs, damages, liabilities, demands, expenses, including but not limited to credit 
monitoring, and remedial measures associated with the breach, respectively.   

 

19. Purchasers shall take reasonable measures, in accordance with industry-recognized leading practices, 
necessary to prevent the unauthorized use, access and disclosure of SOS information, and to prevent 
unauthorized persons or entities from obtaining, accessing, or using such information.  Purchasers 
shall abide by all applicable provisions of the Personal Information Protection Act (hereinafter referred 
to as “PIPA”) (815 ILCS 530), including those governing the disposal of SOS data.  Purchasers shall 
be strictly liable for any unauthorized use, access, and disclosure of SOS data, respectively. This 
includes, but is not limited to: data breaches, accessing databases without authority, non-party access 
to the database(s) or any unauthorized viewing of or use of SOS information, or altering any existing 
SOS information in any form. 

 

20. Purchasers must immediately report to SOS, via telephone and in writing, any unauthorized use, 
unauthorized access, or misuse of SOS information, including any suspected or actual breach of or 
intrusion upon Purchasers’ data security systems by contacting the Secretary of State Department of 
Information Technology (217/558-0049 and 217/557-9000) and the Office of the General Counsel 
(217/785-3094).  If an actual or suspected breach involves SOS information, then the notification must 
include all names, addresses and license plate numbers of the files Purchasers know or have reason 
to believe may have been accessed. Furthermore, in accordance with PIPA, Purchasers shall notify 
Illinois residents if there is any unauthorized access, use or misuse of their personal information, or a 
breach involving their SOS data within Purchasers’ computer systems, respectively. 815 ILCS 530. 

 

21. A data breach constitutes a material breach. If a data security breach, as defined by SOS, occurs that 
impacts or may have impacted SOS data during the term of this Agreement, SOS shall terminate 
access and/or the Agreement as to the breaching Party.  Purchasers shall allow a forensics expert 
selected by SOS to conduct a full and thorough investigation and report his or her findings at 
Purchasers’ expense, respectively.  Purchasers shall cooperate fully with said forensic expert during 
his or her investigation and shall provide him or her with all documentation, access, or other assistance 
the expert shall deem necessary.  Purchasers agree that SOS shall have full and unfettered access to 
the results, including reports, of any such investigations.  After SOS reviews the forensic report, SOS 
will determine if and when access may resume. 

 



Village of Forest Park and DACRA Tech, LLC to 2025 Page 4 

 

22. SOS security policies and all data security standards contained therein, as amended, shall be 
incorporated into this Agreement by reference.  Purchasers shall also adhere to the NIST CSF or NIST 
Special Publication (SP) 800-53 Standards.  Upon notice to Purchasers, SOS reserves the exclusive 
right to add and/or modify these policies and data security requirements referenced in this Agreement 
at any time during its term.  
 

23. In no case shall SOS give any refund of any data fee once SOS has completed the work contracted 
for by Purchasers and presented the information to Purchasers. 
 

24. Purchasers acknowledge that SOS agrees to provide computer accessible resources to Purchasers as 
an accommodation to Purchasers.  SOS shall not be responsible for any failure to deliver resources in 
a timely manner or at all, in the event that SOS suffers a breakdown of its computer facilities, the failure 
of transmission equipment, fire, floods, earthquakes, explosions, acts of authority exercised by a public 
functionary, acts of a public enemy, legislation, governmental regulation or other such circumstances 
which are difficult to foresee and resist, and which impede the ability of SOS to provide the services 
described in this Agreement, which shall be known as force majeure.  SOS will notify Purchasers of an 
event of force majeure that may delay or preclude provision of the resources contemplated under this 
Agreement and will notify Purchasers when such force majeure no longer exists or precludes or delays 
such provision of resources.  SOS will refund any data fee, if applicable, paid by Purchasers for 
undelivered resources; however, SOS shall have no further responsibility or liability to Purchasers with 
respect to such undelivered resources. 
 

25. This Agreement is subject to including but not limited to the rules outlined in 92 Illinois Administrative 
Code 1002, all relevant sections of the Illinois Vehicle Code, the Federal Driver’s Privacy Protection 
Act, 18 USC 2721 et. seq., the Federal Crimes and Criminal Procedure 18 U.S.C. 2722, 2723, 2725, 
and 3571, the Personal Information Protection Act, 815 ILCS 530, the Data Processing Confidentiality 
Act, 30 ILCS 585, and the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 USC 1681 et seq.  Purchasers agree that any 
dispute arising under this Agreement which cannot be resolved amicably among the Parties shall be 
submitted to the court of competent jurisdiction in the State of Illinois, to which jurisdiction Purchasers 
hereby submit.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois.  
 

26. All notices and/or other communication must be in writing and delivered via a national transportation 
company (with all fees prepaid), email, facsimile, or registered or certified mail, return receipt requested 
and postage prepaid and must be addressed using the information specified below for that Party.  A 
Party must maintain its current address. phone number, facsimile phone number, and email address 
with the other Parties.  If a Party’s below information changes, that Party must notify the other Parties 
as soon as possible. 
 

SOS: Village of Forest Park 
Rob Gamrath                             
General Counsel 

 Vanessa Moritz,  
 Village Clerk  

Illinois Secretary of State Village of Forest Park  
100 W. Randolph Street, #15-600 517 Des Plaines Avenue 
Chicago, Illinois 60601 Forest Park, Illinois 60130  
Phone: 312-814-8430 Phone: 708-615-6202 
rgamrath@ilsos.gov  vmoritz@forestpark.net 

 
 Dacra Adjudication Systems, LLC  

d/b/a Dacra Tech, LLC 
Tami Wanless 
Dacra Adjudication Systems, LLC  
d/b/a Dacra Tech, LLC 
707 Osterman Ave., Unit 1693 
Deerfield, Illinois 60015  
Phone: 847-780-9172  
tami.wanless@dacratech.com   
 

mailto:rgamrath@ilsos.gov
mailto:vmoritz@forestpark.net
mailto:Tami.wanless@DACRATech.co


Village of Forest Park and DACRA Tech, LLC to 2025 Page 5 

 

27. Purchasers agree to properly and timely dispose of the materials containing personal information, in a 
manner that renders the personal information unreadable and undecipherable, in accordance with the 
PIPA. 815 ILCS 530.  Furthermore, a violation of PIPA may subject Purchasers to monetary and civil 
penalties not to exceed $50,000 for each instance.  815 ILCS 530/40(d). 
 

28. SOS shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately if, at any time, Purchasers shall 
breach any material provision of this Agreement.  Any Party may terminate this Agreement upon five 
(5) days’ written notice to the other Parties. 
 

29. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement among the Parties concerning access by Purchasers 
to the computer resources of the SOS and supersedes all previous agreements, promises, 
representations, understandings, and negotiations, whether written or oral, among the Parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties’ 
respective successors. 
 

30. Purchasers shall not assign any right and/or obligation hereunder. Any attempted assignment in 
violation of this provision shall be void and of no effect. 
 

31. Purchasers agree to execute such further documents and take such further steps as SOS reasonably 
determines may be necessary or desirable to effectuate the purposes of this Agreement. 
 

32. Purchasers shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, ordinances, guidelines, consent decrees and 
regulations of any federal, state, or other governmental authority. 
 

33. No modification, amendment, supplement to or waiver of this Agreement or any of its provisions shall 
be binding upon a Party hereto, unless made in writing and duly signed by all Parties.  A failure of or 
delay by any Party to this Agreement to enforce at any time any of the provisions of this Agreement or 
to require at any time performance of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall in no way be 
construed to be a waiver of such provision.  A waiver by any Party of any of the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement in any individual instance shall not be deemed a waiver of such terms or conditions 
in the future, or of any subsequent breach thereof. 
 

34. If any provision(s) or clause(s) of this Agreement, or portion thereof, are held by any court or other 
tribunal of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, void or unenforceable in such jurisdiction, such 
provision(s) or clause(s) shall be reformed to approximate as nearly as possible the intent of the Parties, 
and the remainder of such provisions shall not thereby be affected and shall be given full effect without 
regard to the invalid portion, and to this end such provisions are declared to be severable. 
 

35. The Agreement shall be executed by hard-copy signature, or by a method approved by SOS, and in 
any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument.  The 
exchange of executed copies of this Agreement by scanner/email or other electronic transmission will 
constitute effective delivery of this Agreement for all purposes.   
 

36. The continuation of this Agreement and the obligations of the State are contingent upon the 
appropriation by the legislature or federal funding source of sufficient appropriate funds to fulfill the 
requirements of the Agreement.   If sufficient funds as determined by the Secretary of State of Illinois 
are not appropriated, the Agreement shall terminate on the first date in any fiscal year on which 
sufficient funds are no longer available.  The State will give thirty (30) days or as much notice as 
possible of an appropriation issue. 
 

37. Purchasers acknowledge that a violation of PIPA constitutes an unlawful practice under the Consumer 
Fraud & Deceptive Business Practices Act. (815 ILCS 530/20). 
 

38. Felony Conviction/Criminal Background Check.  Purchasers certify that neither any employee nor 
officer of Purchasers accessing SOS data has been convicted of a felony, or, if so convicted, at least 
five (5) years have passed since completion of sentence as of the effective date of this Agreement (30 
ILC 500/50-10). 

 



Village of Forest Park and DACRA Tech, LLC to 2025 Page 6 

 

39. All provisions of this Agreement that are reasonably intended to have effect after termination or 
expiration of this Agreement, including, without limitation, compliance, audit rights, privacy, data 
protection, confidentiality, dispute resolution, indemnity, and insurance requirements, shall survive 
such termination or expiration. 

 

 
   IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed individually 

or by their duly authorized officers: 
 
 
DATE: ____________________ VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Signature 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Print Name, Title 
 
 
 
DATE: _____________________ DACRA ADJUDICATION SYSTEMS, LLC  
 D/B/A DACRA TECH, LLC 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Signature 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Print Name, Title 
 
 
 
DATE: _____________________   STATE OF ILLINOIS 
       SECRETARY OF STATE 

       
        
 _____________________________  

Derek “Jack” Sutphin 
Vehicle Services Department 

 
 
 
DATE: _____________________ 
       Reviewed for Legal Sufficiency: 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Rob Gamrath      
       General Counsel, Secretary of State  
 
 
 













Agenda Memo 

Village Council Meeting 

Forest Park, Illinois 

February 13, 2023 

Issue Statement 

Request for Village Council Action: Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Local Public Agency Joint 
Funding Agreement for Illinois Department of Transportation State-Let Construction Work and an 
Engineering Services Agreement with Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd. Regarding Certain 
Improvements to the Van Buren Street Parking Lot and Harrison Street 

Background 

The Village received an Illinois Transportation Enhancement Grant (ITEP) a few years back to provide for 
bicycle parking facilities near the Village’s two Blue Line CTA Stations (Des Plaines Avenue and Harlem 
Avenue).  Covered bike parking facilities will be installed just north of the Forest Park CTA Station and 
along the north side of Harrison Street just west of Harlem Avenue later this summer. 

See meeting packet from December 13, 2021 for more background information about this project. 

As this project is federally funded (about $102,000; $25,000 is the local match), the Village had to go 
through a QBS Process to select a Phase I/II/III Engineer to administer same.  Though the Village adopted 
by Resolution on December 13, 2021 the selection of Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd. as its 
selected consultant, it is at this time, just prior to bid, that the Village shall enter into the necessary 
agreements with its selected consultant.  Furthermore, the Village shall also enter into a joint-funding 
agreement with the State, as the State administers project payments using the allocated federal monies. 

This process is similar to the recent Jackson Street Resurfacing Project, as said project was also federally 
funded.  The State of Illinois will handle the letting for this project, which is scheduled for early March. 

Attachments 

- State Joint Funding Agreement 
- State Engineering Services Agreement 
- Resolution Approving Said Agreements 

https://www.forestpark.net/dfp/wp-content/uploads/2021/12/121321VillageCouncilPacket.pdf


1114149-1 

RESOLUTION NO. R- _______- 23 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A LOCAL PUBLIC AGENCY JOINT  
FUNDING AGREEMENT FOR ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF  

TRANSPORTATION STATE-LET CONSTRUCTION WORK AND AN  
ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH CHRISTOPHER B.  

BURKE ENGINEERING, LTD. REGARDING CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS  
TO THE VAN BUREN STREET PARKING LOT AND HARRISON STREET 

 
 WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park (“Village”) and the Illinois Department of 

Transportation (“IDOT”) are units of local government within the meaning of the Illinois 

Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, as specified in 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., and both the Village 

and IDOT are authorized by Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of 

Illinois to enter into Intergovernmental Agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the Village and the State of Illinois, acting through IDOT, are desirous of 

entering into a Local Public Agency Joint Funding Agreement for State-Let Construction Work 

(“LPA Participation Agreement”) and the Village and Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd. 

(“Burke”) are desirous of entering into a Local Public Agency Engineering Services Agreement 

(“Engineering Services Agreement”), each regarding certain improvements to the Van Buren 

Street Parking Lot and Harrison Street ("Project") within the corporate boundaries of the Village 

(collectively, both the “Agreements”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the LPA Participation Agreement and the Engineering Services 

Agreement, federal and state participation amounts are not to exceed, collectively, the amount of 

One Hundred Thousand Two Hundred Thirty-Seven and 50/100 Dollars ($100,237.50) and the 

local Village balance responsibility is Eleven Thousand One Hundred Thirty-Seven and 50/100 

Dollars ($11,137.50), for a total Project cost of One Hundred Eleven Thousand Three Hundred 

Seventy-Five Dollars ($111,375.00). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. That “Joint Funding Agreement for State-Let Construction Work,” 

between the Village of Forest Park and the State of Illinois, acting through IDOT, a copy of 

which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. 

 Section 2. The "Local Public Agency Engineering Services Agreement" between the 

Village and Burke, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit B, is hereby approved. 



1114149-1 

 Section 3. The Village Council hereby approves and authorizes the expenditure of 

the amount of Eleven Thousand One Hundred Thirty-Seven and 50/100 Dollars ($11,137.50), or 

as much as may be needed to balance the funds for the completion of the Project under the 

Agreements. 

 Section 4. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute the Agreements, 

as required, on behalf of the Village. 

 Section 5. The officials, officers, employees and agents of the Village are hereby 

authorized to take such actions and execute such documents as are necessary to effectuate the 

Agreements for the Project and to carry out the terms, provisions, and intent of this Resolution. 

 Section 6. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and 

approval as required by law. 

Resolved this 13th day of February, 2023. 
 

AYES: ____________________________ 
 
NAYS: ____________________________ 
 
ABSENT: __________________________ 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 

 
     _____________________________________ 
     Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED and filed in my office 
and published in pamphlet form this 
__________ day of February, 2023. 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



1114149-1 

EXHIBIT A 

JOINT FUNDING AGREEMENT 
FOR STATE-LET CONSTRUCTION WORK 

 
 
 

































1114149-1 

EXHIBIT B 
 

LOCAL PUBLIC AGENCY ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT  
 





























Agenda Memo 

Village Council Meeting 

Forest Park, Illinois 

February 13, 2023 

Issue Statement 

Request for Village Council Action: Adoption of a Resolution in Support of an Application for a Rebuilding 
American Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity (RAISE) Grant Application for the Harlem Avenue 
Multimodal Bridge Project 

Request for Village Council Action: Policy Direction by the Village Council Regarding Sending Letter 
Regarding Local Match Commitment for the Harlem Avenue Multimodal Bridge Project 

Background 

The Village of Oak Park is coordinating a partnership with the Villages of Forest Park and River Forest to 
apply for a Federal RAISE Grant that would provide for 80% of funding that is needed to reconstruct the 
viaduct bridge located on Harlem Avenue at the north end of town.   

A reconstruction of this bridge is needed in light of it being too low, especially as it is located along a 
major north-south vehicular transportation corridor.  Further improvement of this viaduct will also allow 
for better traffic flow along said corridor.   

Efforts to commence the design and construct this improvement have gone on at least since the early 
2000’s.  Phase I engineering for the project began several years ago and hit a standstill; these efforts 
hopefully will soon progress towards completion as the State of Illinois is now funding the completion of 
same. 

A similar effort to apply for federal funding to make this project a reality took place back in 2019.  A 
TIGER grant was applied for, however, our Villages were not successful in said grant application. 

Like the 2019 effort, Oak Park is coordinating a grant application effort utilizing the same consultant 
who has familiarity with the project in efforts to procure federal funds via a RAISE grant.  The cost 
associated with said grant application utilizing said consultant is $15,000; of which, Forest Park’s share is 
25%, or $3,750. 

As the chart illustrates below, 2023 project estimates now has this project costing around $35,000,000. 

A federal RAISE grant will provide 80% of funding; a 20% local share is required.  Local shares can be in 
the form of local (municipal) monies, State monies, or other grants.  Utilizing the funding share 
breakdown that was agreed to in 2008, Forest Park’s exposure in this model is 25% (future cost share 
responsibilities between all parties moving forward would need to be agreed to via an IGA).   

Staff is requesting that the Village Council adopt the attached resolution affirming the Village’s 
commitment to pay for 25% of the fee associated with the submission of a RAISE grant for the Harlem 
Avenue Viaduct Improvement Project.  The professional services fees associated with this grant 



submission will be paid for by the Village of Oak Park; Forest Park and River Forest will reimburse Oak 
Park their respective shares. 

Secondly, similar to the 2019 TIGER grant submission effort, the RAISE grant application effort will also 
require that each Village submit a letter committing to contributing their local share, as said grant has a 
20% local share component.  See attached 2019 example letters from Oak Park and River Forest (Forest 
Park’s letter could not be located at the time of this memo’s writing).  Again, the Village Council shall 
authorize staff to compose a similar letter; current model suggests Forest Park’s potential exposure to 
be $2.5 million. 

It shall be noted that staff anticipates utilizing Brown TIF monies to pay for Forest Park’s local share.  
Should the Villages be awarded said RAISE grant, it is hoped that all of our Village’s local share can be 
minimized by pursuing other funding sources such as State monies or other grants.  However, should 
our Villages not be successful in receiving federal assistance with this project, there is potential that our 
collective Villages local share exposure may exceed what is noted below.   

 

Attachments 

- Resolution authorizing Village’s participation in grant submission; 
- Copy of consultant proposal; 
- Copy of 2019 Oak Park and River Forest cost share letters. 



 
 RESOLUTION R- _____ - 23 

 
A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF AN APPLICATION FOR A REBUILDING AMERICAN 

INFRASTRUCTURE WITH SUSTAINABILITY AND  EQUITY (RAISE) GRANT APPLICATION  
FOR THE HARLEM AVENUE MULTIMODAL BRIDGE PROJECT  

 
WHEREAS, the Villages of Forest Park, Oak Park and River Forest share jurisdictional boundaries at the 

location of the Harlem Avenue viaduct; and, 
 
WHEREAS, in addition, the Harlem Avenue viaduct serves a major transportation corridor for vehicles, 

Union Pacific, Metra and the Chicago Transit Authority; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Villages of Forest Park, Oak Park and River Forest have been previously awarded a grant 
to study the feasibility of improving the Harlem Avenue viaduct; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Villages of Forest Park, Oak Park and River Forest agree that the Harlem Avenue viaduct 

improvements in the feasibility study should be constructed and now seek financial assistance through the RAISE 
grant program to ensure the Harlem Avenue Multimodal Bridge Project can be accomplished to protect the health, 
safety and welfare of the communities.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, 

Illinois, as follows:  
 

Section 1.  The Village of Forest Park (“Village”) supports the application for a RAISE shared fund grant 
application for the Harlem Avenue Multimodal Bridge Project in conjunction with the Villages of Oak Park and 
River Forest, and authorizes payment of an amount not to exceed twenty-five (25%) percent of the grant preparation 
and application cost, equal to Three Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty ($3,750.00) Dollars. 

  
Section 2.  The Village Administrator is authorized to act on behalf of the Village in the execution of 

documents relating to the application of the RAISE shared fund grant for the Harlem Avenue Multimodal Bridge 
Project.  

 
Section 3.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, by a vote of a 

majority of the corporate authorities.  
 
ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 13th day of February, 

2023.  
 
AYES: ___________________  
 
NAYS: ___________________  
 
ABSENT: _________________  
 
APPROVED by me this 13th day of February, 2023.  
 
________________________________  
Rory Hoskins, Mayor  
 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, and published in pamphlet form this _____ day of February, 2023.  
 
________________________________  
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



 

Village of Oak Park 
Department of Public Works 

Engineering Division  

MEMORANDUM 
 
February 6, 2023 
 
TO:    Kevin J. Jackson 
 
CC:  Ahmad Zayyad, Lisa Shelly, Paul Stephanides, Rob Sproule 
     
FROM:    Bill McKenna 
 
RE:  Agreement for Harlem Avenue Bridge Replacement project RAISE Grant 

Application Preparation 

 

 
The Federal Department of Transportation recently announced a Notice of Funding Opportunity 
for the Rebuilding American Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity (RAISE) Grant Program.   
RAISE grants (formerly TIGER grants) are for surface transportation projects which will have 
significant local or regional impacts and improve transportation infrastructure and can only be 
used for projects that have a minimum of $5 million in construction costs.   Staff recommends 
submitting a RAISE Grant application for the proposed Harlem Avenue Bridge Replacement 
Project.  RAISE Grant applications are due February 28th.  
 
RAISE Grant applications are significant applications to complete and require detailed benefit to 
cost analysis in addition to the project narratives.  In order to complete the grant application, 
the Engineering Division requested a proposal from Sam Schwartz Consulting.  The Engineering 
Division did not request proposals from multiple consultants for this work as Sam Schwartz 
previously assisted the Village with TIGER grant applications for this same project and is best 
suited for this work due to their familiarity with the project and they have completed RAISE 
Grant applications for other communities.   
 
The Village has previously submitted grant applications for this project and historically the 
Villages of River Forest and Forest Park have each paid 25% of the costs associated with 
preparing the grant applications.  The total costs for preparing the grant application is not to 
exceed $15,000.  Should the two neighboring Villages contribute to these costs, the Village of 
Forest Park and River Forest would reimburse the Village for their 25% share ($3,750 each) and 
the Village’s share would be $7,500.  There are available funds for this work in the FY23 Budget 
in the Capital Improvement Fund, Public‐works‐Engineering, External Support account no. 
3095.43780.101.530667.   
 
Please execute the attached Professional Services Agreement for this work and please contact 
the Village Administrators for River Forest and Forest Park to get their approval for any cost 
sharing for this work. 



Sam Schwartz 
223 W. Jackson Blvd., Suite 1101 
Chicago, IL 60606 
(773) 305-0800 
samschwartz.com 

Sam Schwartz Engineering, DPC is a firm authorized to perform engineering services in different states and works in cooperation 
with Sam Schwartz Consulting, LLC, collectively comprising the Sam Schwartz team. Working as a team provides both companies 
access to the entire network of professionals. 

February 3, 2023 

Eric Otto 
Civil Engineer 
Village of Oak Park 
201 South Blvd 
Oak Park, IL 60302 

RE: RAISE Grant Assistance 

Dear Error! No text of specified style in document.: 

Sam Schwartz Consulting, LLC, is pleased to submit this proposal to support the Village of Oak Park in 
completing a grant application for the Rebuilding American Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity 
(RAISE) Grant Program 2023 for the Harlem Avenue Multimodal Bridge Project.  

We will draw from past work with Oak Park for previous TIGER grant cycles, as well as our recent 
successful support of the Town of Munster, Indiana’s 2022 RAISE application. Sam Schwartz is prepared 
to fulfill the grant support services within the required timeline for the Village to submit the application to 
the Department of Transportation. 

The proposed scope of work and schedule is outlined in the following pages. Sam Schwartz’ estimated 
fee for these services is not to exceed $15,000 and will be billed on a time and materials basis.  

If you accept this scope of services and budget, please sign where indicated and return a copy of the 
proposal. We look forward to continuing our work with the Village. Please contact me with any questions 
regarding this submittal. 

Sincerely, 

Stacey Meekins, AICP 
Principal 
312-736-2547   

 



February 3, 2023 
RE: RAISE Grant Assistance 

Page 2 of 4 

samschwartz.com 

RAISE Grant Assistance 

Project Understanding & Scope of Work 
Sam Schwartz Consulting (Sam Schwartz) will assist the Village of Oak Park in preparing a grant 
application for the Rebuilding American Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity (RAISE) 
Grant Program 2023 for the Harlem Avenue Multimodal Bridge Project. Sam Schwartz will work 
closely with the Village to update previous materials to align with RAISE criteria. Our team will 
facilitate a process that incorporates opportunity for review and feedback prior to the grant 
application deadline of February 28, 2023.  

Task 1: Client Coordination & Background Research 

Our team will coordinate with the Village throughout the compressed project schedule. This will 
include at minimum weekly check in calls, with ad hoc correspondence and calls as needed. Sam 
Schwartz will begin by reviewing previous materials provided by the Village (via Dropbox) as well 
as FTA grant application guidance, including how the application criteria has changed since the 
Village’s last TIGER submission. Within a week of project start, the team will draft and application 
outline for the Village’s review and comment.  

Task 2: Draft Grant Narrative 

Sam Schwartz will prepare a full draft narrative of the grant application for review and approval 
by the Village. The narrative will be tailored to align with RAISE 2023 priorities and criteria, making 
a strong case for the Village’s application. It will define existing issues and transportation 
challenges and how the bridge project addresses them, clearly describe local and regional 
impacts and outcomes, highlight the project’s ability to improve access to safe, reliable, and 
affordable transportation for underserved communities, and explain how the project considers 
climate change and racial equity. Supporting graphics will be prioritized to the extent that they 
strengthen the application and make it attractive and visually compelling.  

Task 3: Benefit Cost Analysis 

The team will prepare a benefit cost analysis (BCA) based on federal guidance for the Village’s 
review and approval. Cost elements are assumed to be provided by Lochner via the Village.  

Task 4: Final Grant Materials 

Sam Schwartz will revise the grant application narrative and BCA based on feedback from the 
Village and prepare final grant materials. The Village will be responsible for collecting letters of 
support from relevant agencies and elected officials. 



February 3, 2023 
RE: RAISE Grant Assistance 

Page 3 of 4 

samschwartz.com 

Sam Schwartz will internally QA/QC all final materials before submitting the Village, no later than 
February 24, 2023.  
 

Project Schedule 
Week Of Feb 6 to 10 Feb 13 to 17 Feb 20 to 24 

Background research       
Client coordination       
Application outline       
Draft content       
Draft BCA       
Revised content       
Final application       

 

  



February 3, 2023 
RE: RAISE Grant Assistance 

Page 4 of 4 

samschwartz.com 

FEE SUMMARY AND AUTHORIZATION 

Sam Schwartz is requesting a fee not to exceed $15,000 for completion of the tasks detailed above.  

If you approve this fee for additional work completed, please return a signed copy of this agreement. If 
you have any questions, please do not hesitate to email or call. We look forward to continuing working 
with you on this exciting project. 

 

AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED ACCEPTED BY: 

 

____________________________ ______________________________ 

Signature    Name (please print) 

 

____________________________ _______________________________  

Title & Company   Date 

BY SIGNING THIS DOCUMENT, YOU CERTIFY THAT YOU ARE AUTHORIZED TO ENTER INTO 
BINDING CONTRACTS ON BEHALF OF YOUR ORGANIZATION. 



 

 
 

     
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
  THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”) 
is entered  into this ______ day of February, 2023, between the Village of Oak Park, an  Illinois 
home rule municipal corporation  (hereinafter referred to as the “Village”), and Sam Schwartz 
Consulting, LLC, an foreign limited liability company authorized to conduct business in the State 
of Illinois (hereinafter referred to as the “Consultant”).   
 

R E C I T A L    
 
  WHEREAS, the Village intends to have professional services performed by Consultant to 
provide  RAISE  grant  assistance  pursuant  to  Consultant’s  Proposal  dated  February  3,  2023, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant’s 
Proposal”), and this Agreement.   
 
  NOW, THEREFORE,  in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the 
parties agree as follows:   
 
1.  RECITAL INCORPORATED. 
 

The above recital is incorporated herein as though fully set forth. 
 
2.  SERVICES OF THE CONSULTANT. 
 
  2.1.  The Project consists of professional engineering and planning services, as more 
completely described  in  the Consultant’s proposal  (hereinafter  referred  to as  the “Services”).  
After written  authorization  by  the  Village,  the  Consultant  shall  provide  the  Services  for  the 
Project. The Village shall approve the use of subconsultants by the Consultant to perform any of 
the Services that are the subject of this Agreement. 
 

2.2.  The  Consultant  shall  submit  to  the  Village  all  reports,  documents,  data,  and 
information set forth in the Project.  The Village shall have the right to require such corrections 
as may be reasonably necessary to make any required submittal conform to this Agreement. The 
Consultant  shall be  responsible  for any delay  in  the Services  to be provided pursuant  to  this 
Agreement due to the Consultant’s failure to provide any required submittal in conformance with 
this Agreement.   

 



    
 
 
 

‐ 2 ‐ 
 

  2.3.  In  case of  a  conflict between provisions of  the Consultant’s Proposal  and  this 
Agreement, this Agreement shall control to the extent of such conflict. 
 
  2.4.  Village Authorized Representative.  The Village’s Director of Public Works or the 
Director’s designee shall be deemed the Village’s authorized representative, unless applicable 
law requires action by the Corporate Authorities, and shall have the power and authority to make 
or grant or do  those  things, certificates,  requests, demands, approvals, consents, notices and 
other actions required that are ministerial in nature or described in this Agreement for and on 
behalf of the Village and with the effect of binding the Village as limited by this Agreement.  The 
Consultant  is  entitled  to  rely  on  the  full  power  and  authority  of  the  person  executing  this 
Agreement on behalf of the Village as having been properly and legally given by the Village.  The 
Village shall have the right to change its authorized representative by providing the Consultant 
with written notice of such change which notice shall be sent in accordance with Section 17 of 
this Agreement. 

2.5.  Consultant’s Authorized Representative.    In connection with  the  foregoing and 
other  actions  to  be  taken  under  this  Agreement,  the  Consultant  hereby  designates  Stacey 
Meekins as  its authorized representative who shall have the power and authority to make or 
grant or do all  things, certificates, requests, demands, approvals, consents, notices and other 
actions required that are ministerial in nature or described in this Agreement for and on behalf 
of the Consultant and with the effect of binding the Consultant.  The Village is entitled to rely on 
the full power and authority of the person executing this Agreement on behalf of the Consultant 
as having been properly and legally given by the Consultant. The Consultant shall have the right 
to  change  its Authorized Representative by providing  the Village with written notice of  such 
change which notice shall be sent in accordance with Section 18 of this Agreement. 

 
2.6.  The Consultant shall be an independent Consultant to the Village.  The Consultant 

shall  solely  be  responsible  for  the  payment  of  all  salaries,  benefits  and  costs  of  supplying 
personnel  for  the  Services.  Nothing  contained  in  this  Agreement  shall  create  a  contractual 
relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against Consultant. The Consultant's 
services under this Agreement are being performed solely for the Village's benefit, and no other 
party or entity shall have any claim against  the Consultant because of  this Agreement or  the 
performance or nonperformance of services hereunder.  
 
3.  COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES. 
 
  3.1.  The Village shall compensate the Consultant for the Services in an amount not to 
exceed $15,000.  The Consultant shall be paid installments not more frequently than once each 
month (“Progress Payments”).  Payments shall be made within thirty (30) days of receipt by the 
Village of a pay request/invoice from the Consultant.  Payments shall be due and owing by the 
Village in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Local Government Prompt Payment 
Act, 50 ILCS 505/1 et seq., except as set forth herein.  
 



    
 
 
 

‐ 3 ‐ 
 

3.2.  The Village may, at any time, by written order, make changes within the general 
scope of this Agreement in the Services to be performed by the Consultant.  If such changes cause 
an increase or decrease in the amount to be paid to Consultant or time required for performance 
of  any  Services  under  this  Agreement, whether  or  not  changed  by  any  order,  an  equitable 
adjustment shall be made and this Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly.  No service 
for which additional compensation will be charged by the Consultant shall be furnished without 
the written authorization of the Village. 

 
3.3.  The Consultant shall, as a condition precedent to  its right to receive a progress 

payment, submit to the Village an  invoice accompanied by such receipts, vouchers, and other 
documents as may be necessary  to establish costs  incurred  for all  labor, material, and other 
things covered by the invoice and the absence of any interest, whether in the nature of a lien or 
otherwise, of any party  in any property, work, or fund with respect to the Services performed 
under  this Agreement.    In addition  to  the  foregoing,  such  invoice  shall  include  (a) employee 
classifications, rates per hour, and hours worked by each classification, and, if the Services are to 
be performed in separate phases, for each phase; (b) total amount billed in the current period 
and total amount billed to date, and, if the Services are to be performed in separate phases, for 
each phase; (c) the estimated percent completion, and,  if the Services are to be performed  in 
separate phases, for each phase.   

 
3.4.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement and without prejudice to 

any of the Village’s rights or remedies, the Village shall have the right at any time or times to 
withhold from any payment such amount as may reasonably appear necessary to compensate 
the Village for any actual or prospective loss due to:  (1) Services that are defective, damaged, 
flawed, unsuitable, nonconforming, or incomplete; (2) damage for which the Consultant is liable 
under  this  Agreement;  (3)  claims  of  subconsultants,  suppliers,  or  other  persons  performing 
Consultant’s Services; (4) delay in the progress or completion of the Services; (5) inability of the 
Consultant  to  complete  the  Services;  (6)  failure  of  the  Consultant  to  properly  complete  or 
document any pay request; (7) any other failure of Consultant to perform any of its obligations 
under this Agreement; or  (8) the cost to the Village,  including reasonable attorneys’  fees and 
administrative costs, of correcting any of the aforesaid matters or exercising any one or more of 
the Village’s remedies set  forth  in  this Agreement.   The Village must notify  the Consultant of 
cause for withholding within fourteen (14) days of receiving invoice. 

 
3.5.  The Village shall be entitled to retain any and all amounts withheld pursuant to 

this Agreement until the Consultant shall have either performed the obligations in question or 
furnished security for such performance satisfactory to the Village.  The Village shall be entitled 
to apply any money withheld or any other money due the Consultant under this Agreement to 
reimburse  itself  for any and all  costs, expenses,  losses, damages,  liabilities,  suits,  judgments, 
awards, reasonable attorneys’ fees, and administrative expenses incurred, suffered, or sustained 
by the Village and chargeable to the Consultant under this Agreement. 

 



    
 
 
 

‐ 4 ‐ 
 

3.6.  The Consultant’s Services shall be considered complete on the date of final written 
acceptance by the Village, which acceptance shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.  As 
soon as practicable after final acceptance, the Village shall pay to the Consultant the balance of 
any amount due and owing under this Agreement, after deducting therefrom all charges against 
the  Consultant  as  provided  for  in  this  Agreement  (“Final  Payment”).    The  acceptance  by 
Consultant of Final Payment with respect to the Services shall operate as a  full and complete 
release of  the Village of and  from any and all  lawsuits, claims, demands, damages,  liabilities, 
losses, and expenses of, by, or to the Consultant for anything done, furnished for, arising out of, 
relating to, or in connection with the Services, except for such claims as the Consultant reserved 
in writing at the time of submitting its invoice for final payment. 

 
4.  TERM AND TERMINATION. 
 
  4.1.  This Agreement shall take effect upon the Effective Date as defined herein and 
shall expire upon the Consultant’s completion of its services pursuant to Section 3.6 above. 
 
  4.2.  This Agreement may be terminated, in whole or in part, by either party if the other 
party  substantially  fails  to  fulfill  its obligations under  this Agreement  through no  fault of  the 
terminating  party.    The  Village may  terminate  this  Agreement,  in whole  or  in  part,  for  its 
convenience.  No such termination may be affected unless the terminating party gives the other 
party not less than ten (10) calendar days written notice pursuant to Section 18 below of its intent 
to terminate. 
 
  4.3.  If this Agreement  is terminated by either party, the Consultant shall be paid for 
Services performed to the effective date of termination, including reimbursable expenses.  In the 
event of termination, the Village shall receive reproducible copies of drawings, specifications and 
other documents completed by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement.  
 
5.  INDEMNIFICATION. 
 
  5.1.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Consultant hereby agrees to defend, 
indemnify  and  hold  harmless  the  Village  and  its  officers,  officials,  agents,  employees  and 
volunteers  against  all  injuries,  deaths,  loss,  damages,  claims,  patent  claims,  suits,  liabilities, 
judgments, cost and expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees and court 
costs (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) which may accrue against the Village and its officers, 
officials, agents, employees and volunteers to the extent arising out of the negligent performance 
of the work by the Consultant, its employees, or subconsultants, except for the negligence of the 
Village or its officers, officials, agents, employees and volunteers.  
   



    
 
 
 

‐ 5 ‐ 
 

6.  INSURANCE. 
 
  6.1.  The Consultant shall, at the Consultant's expense, secure and maintain  in effect 
throughout the duration of this Agreement, insurance of the following kinds and limits set forth 
in  this  Section  6.  The Consultant  shall  furnish Certificates of  Insurance  to  the Village before 
starting work or within ten (10) days after the notice of award of the Agreement, which ever date 
is reached  first.   All  insurance policies, except professional  liability  insurance, shall be written 
with insurance companies licensed or authorized to do business in the State of Illinois and having 
a rating of at  least A according  to the  latest edition of  the Best’s Key Rating Guide; and shall 
include a provision preventing cancellation of the insurance policy unless fifteen (15) days prior 
written notice is given to the Village. This provision (or reasonable equivalent) shall also be stated 
on each Certificate of Insurance: “Should any of the above described policies be canceled before 
the  expiration  date,  the  issuing  company  shall mail  fifteen  (15)  days’ written  notice  to  the 
certificate holder named to the left.”  The Consultant shall require any of its subconsultants to 
secure and maintain  insurance as set forth  in this Section 6 and  indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend the Village and its officers, officials, agents, employees and volunteers as set forth in this 
Agreement. 
 
  6.2.  The limits of liability for the insurance required shall provide coverage for not less 
than the following amounts, or greater where required by law: 
 
    (A)   Commercial General Liability: 
      i.  Coverage to include, Broad Form Property Damage, Contractual and 

Personal Injury. 
      ii.  Limits: 
        General Aggregate         $ 2,000,000.00 
        Each Occurrence        $ 1,000,000.00 
        Personal Injury         $ 1,000,000.00 
       
      iii.  Cover  all  claims  arising  out  of  the  Consultant's  operations  or 

premises, anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Consultant.  
 
    (B)  Professional Liability: 
      i.  Per Claim/Aggregate        $2,000,000.00 
      ii.  Cover  all  claims  arising  out  of  the  Consultant's  operations  or 

premises, anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Consultant.    
 
    (C)  Workers’ Compensation: 
      i.  Workers’ compensation  insurance  shall be  in accordance with  the 

provisions of the laws of the State of Illinois, including occupational 
disease provisions, for all employees who work on the Project, and in 
case work is sublet, the Consultant shall require each subconsultant 
similarly  to  provide  workers’  compensation  insurance.    In  case 



    
 
 
 

‐ 6 ‐ 
 

employees engaged in hazardous work under this Agreement are not 
protected under workers’ compensation  insurance,  the Consultant 
shall  provide,  and  shall  cause  each  subconsultant  to  provide, 
adequate and suitable insurance for the protection of employees not 
otherwise provided.    

 
    (D)  Comprehensive Automobile Liability: 
      i.  Coverage  to  include all owned, hired, non‐owned vehicles, and/or 

trailers  and  other  equipment  required  to  be  licensed,  covering 
personal injury, bodily injury and property damage. 

      ii.  Limits: 
        Combined Single Limit        $1,000,000.00 
 
    (E)  Umbrella: 
      i.  Limits: 
        Each Occurrence/Aggregate      $2,000,000.00 
         
    (F)  The Village and its officers, officials, agents, employees and volunteers shall 

be named as additional  insureds on all  insurance policies  identified herein 
except Workers’ Compensation and Professional Liability.     The Consultant 
shall be responsible for the payment of any deductibles for said  insurance 
policies.   The coverage shall contain no special  limitations on the scope of 
protection afforded to the Village, its officers, employees, and volunteers. 

 
  6.3.  The Village and the Consultant agree to waive against each other all claims  for 
special,  incidental,  indirect, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting from, or  in any 
way related to the Project. 
 
  6.4.  The Consultant understands and agrees that any insurance protection required by 
this Agreement or otherwise provided by the Consultant, shall in no way limit the responsibility 
to indemnify, keep and save harmless, and defend the Village and its officers, officials, agents, 
employees and volunteers as herein provided.  The Consultant waives and agrees to require its 
insurers to waive its rights of subrogation against the Village and its officers, officials, employees, 
agents and volunteers. 
 
7.  SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. 
 
  7.1.  The  Village  and  the  Consultant  each  bind  themselves  and  their  partners, 
successors, executors, administrators and assigns to the other party of this Agreement and to the 
partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of such other party in respect to all 
covenants off  this Agreement.   Except as above, neither  the Village nor  the Consultant  shall 
assign, sublet or transfer its interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other.  
Nothing herein shall be construed as creating any personal liability on the part of any officer or 



    
 
 
 

‐ 7 ‐ 
 

agent of any public body that may not be a party hereto, nor shall it be construed as giving any 
right or benefits hereunder to anyone other than the Village and the Consultant. 
 
8.  FORCE MAJEURE. 
 
  8.1.  Neither the Consultant nor the Village shall be responsible for any delay caused 
by any contingency beyond their control,  including, but not  limited to:   acts of nature, war or 
insurrection,  strikes  or  lockouts,  walkouts,  fires,  natural  calamities,  riots  or  demands  or 
requirements of governmental agencies. 
 
9.  AMENDMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS. 
 
  9.1.  This  Agreement  may  be  modified  or  amended  from  time  to  time  provided, 
however, that no such amendment or modification shall be effective unless reduced to writing 
and  duly  authorized  and  signed  by  the  authorized  representative  of  the  Village  and  the 
authorized representative of the Consultant. 
 
10.  STANDARD OF CARE. 
 
  10.1.  The  Consultant  is  responsible  for  the  quality,  technical  accuracy,  timely 
completion,  and  coordination  of  all  designs,  drawings,  specifications,  reports  and  other 
professional Services furnished or required under this Agreement, and shall endeavor to perform 
such Services with the same skill and judgment which can be reasonably expected from similarly 
situated professionals. 
 
  10.2.  The Consultant shall be responsible for the accuracy of  its professional Services 
under this Agreement and shall promptly make revisions or corrections resulting from its errors, 
omissions, or negligent acts without additional compensation.  The Village’s acceptance of any 
of  Consultant’s  professional  Services  shall  not  relieve  Consultant  of  its  responsibility  to 
subsequently  correct  any  such  errors  or  omissions,  provided  the  Village  notifies  Consultant 
thereof within one year of completion of the Consultant’s Services.    
 
  10.3.  The Consultant shall respond to the Village’s notice of any errors and/or omissions 
within seven  (7) days of written confirmation by  the Consultant of  the Village’s notice.   Such 
confirmation may be in the form of a facsimile confirmation receipt by the Village, or by actual 
hand delivery of written notice by the Village to the Consultant.   
 

10.4.  The Consultant shall comply with all federal, state, and local statutes, regulations, 
rules, ordinances,  judicial decisions,  and  administrative  rulings  applicable  to  its performance 
under this Agreement. 
 
  10.5.  The Consultant shall give all notices, pay all fees, and take all other action that may 
be necessary to ensure that the Services are provided, performed, and completed in accordance 



    
 
 
 

‐ 8 ‐ 
 

with all required governmental permits,  licenses, and other approvals and authorizations that 
may be required in connection with providing, performing, and completing the Services, and with 
all applicable statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations, including, but not limited to,  the Fair 
Labor Standards Act; any statutes regarding qualification to do business; any statutes prohibiting 
discrimination because of, or  requiring  affirmative  action based on  race,  color,  religion,  sex, 
national  origin,  ancestry,  age,  order  of  protection  status, marital  status,  physical  or mental 
disability, military status, sexual orientation, or unfavorable discharge from military service or 
other prohibited classification, including, without limitation, the Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq., and the Illinois Human Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/1‐101 et seq.  
The Consultant shall also comply with all conditions of any federal, state, or local grant received 
by the Village or the Consultant with respect to this Agreement.   
 
  10.6.  The Consultant shall be solely liable for any fines or civil penalties that are imposed 
by any governmental or quasi‐governmental agency or body that may arise, or be alleged to have 
arisen, out of or in connection with the Consultant’s, or its subconsultants’, performance of, or 
failure to perform, the Services required pursuant to this Agreement or any part thereof. 
 
11.  DRAWINGS, DOCUMENTS AND BOOKS AND RECORDS. 
 
  11.1.  Drawings,  plans,  specifications,  photos,  reports,  information,  observations, 
calculations,  notes  and  any  other  reports,  documents,  date  or  information,  in  any  form, 
prepared, collected, or received by the Consultant in connection with any or all of the Services to 
be provided pursuant to this Agreement (“Documents”) shall be and remain the property of the 
Village upon completion of  the project and payment  to  the Consultant all amounts  then due 
under  this Agreement.   At  the Village’s  request, or upon  termination of  this Agreement,  the 
Documents shall be delivered promptly to the Village.   The Consultant shall have the right to 
retain copies of the Documents for its files.  The Consultant shall maintain files of all Documents 
unless  the Village  shall  consent  in writing  to  the destruction of  the Documents,  as  required 
herein.   
 
  11.2.  The Consultant’s Documents  and  records pursuant  to  this Agreement  shall be 
maintained and made available during performance of Project Services under this Agreement 
and for three (3) years after completion of the Project.  The Consultant shall give notice to the 
Village of any Documents to be disposed of or destroyed and the intended date after said period, 
which  shall be at  least ninety  (90) days after  the effective date of  such notice of disposal or 
destruction.  The Village shall have ninety (90) days after receipt of any such notice to given notice 
to  the Consultant not  to dispose of or destroy  said Documents and  to  require Consultant  to 
deliver same to the Village, at the Village’s expense. The Consultant and any subconsultants shall 
maintain for a minimum of three (3) years after the completion of this Agreement, or for three 
(3)  years  after  the  termination  of  this  Agreement, whichever  comes  later,  adequate  books, 
records  and  supporting  documents  to  verify  the  amounts,  recipients  and  uses  of  all 
disbursements of  funds passing  in  conjunction with  the Agreement.   The Agreement  and  all 
books, records and supporting documents related to the Agreement shall be available for review 



    
 
 
 

‐ 9 ‐ 
 

and audit by the Village and the federal funding entity, if applicable, and the Consultant agrees 
to  cooperate  fully with  any  audit  conducted  by  the Village  and  to  provide  full  access  to  all 
materials.   Failure to maintain the books, records and supporting documents required by this 
subsection shall establish a presumption in favor of the Village for recovery of any funds paid by 
the  Village  under  the  Agreement  for  which  adequate  books,  records  and  supporting 
documentation are not available to support their purported disbursement.  The Consultant shall 
make the Documents available for the Village’s review,  inspection and audit during the entire 
term of this Agreement and three (3) years after completion of the Project as set forth herein 
and  shall  fully  cooperate  in  responding  to  any  information  request  pursuant  to  the  Illinois 
Freedom of Information Act, 5 ILCS 140/1 et seq. by providing any and all responsive documents 
to the Village.   
 

11.3.  The Consultant shall have the right to include among the Consultant’s promotional 
and professional materials those drawings, renderings, other design documents and other work 
products that are prepared by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement  (collectively “Work 
Products”).    The  Village  shall  provide  professional  credit  to  the  Consultant  in  the  Village’s 
development, promotional and other materials which include the Consultant’s Work Products. 

 
12.  SAVINGS CLAUSE.   
 
  12.1.  If any provision of this Agreement, or the application of such provision, shall be 
rendered or declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or by reason of its requiring 
any steps, actions or results, the remaining parts or portions of this Agreement shall remain in 
full force and effect.     
 
13.  NON‐WAIVER OF RIGHTS. 
 
  13.1.  No failure of either party to exercise any power given to it hereunder or to insist 
upon  strict  compliance by  the other party with  its obligations hereunder,  and no  custom or 
practice of the parties at variance with the terms hereof, nor any payment under this agreement 
shall  constitute  a waiver of  either party's  right  to demand  exact  compliance with  the  terms 
hereof. 
 
  13.2.  This  Agreement  shall  not  prohibit  the  Consultant  from  providing  engineering 
Services to any other public or private entity or person.  In the event that the Consultant provides 
Services to a public or private entity or person, the Village, at its sole discretion, may determine 
that such Services conflict with a service to be provided to the Village by Consultant, and the 
Village may select another civil engineer and/or  land surveyor to provide such Services as the 
Village deems appropriate. 
 
14.  THE VILLAGE’S REMEDIES. 
 



    
 
 
 

‐ 10 ‐ 
 

14.1.  If it should appear at any time prior to final payment that the Consultant has failed 
or  refused  to  prosecute,  or  has  delayed  in  the  prosecution  of,  the  Services  to  be  provided 
pursuant to this Agreement with diligence at a rate that assures completion of the Services in full 
compliance with the requirements of this Agreement, or has attempted to assign this Agreement 
or the Consultant’s rights under this Agreement, either in whole or in part, or has falsely made 
any representation or warranty, or has otherwise failed, refused, or delayed to perform or satisfy 
any other requirement of this Agreement or has failed to pay its debts as they come due (“Event 
of Default”), and has  failed  to cure, or has reasonably commenced  to cure any such Event of 
Default within fifteen (15) business days after Consultant’s receipt of written notice of such Event 
of Default, then the Village shall have the right, at its election and without prejudice to any other 
remedies provided by law or equity, to pursue any one or more of the following remedies: 

 
    14.1.1.   The Village may require the Consultant, within such reasonable time as 
may  be  fixed  by  the Village,  to  complete  or  correct  all  or  any  part  of  the  Services  that  are 
defective, damaged,  flawed, unsuitable, nonconforming, or  incomplete and  to  take any or all 
other action necessary to bring Consultant and the Services into compliance with this Agreement;  
 
    14.1.2.    The  Village may  accept  the  defective,  damaged,  flawed,  unsuitable, 
nonconforming, incomplete, or dilatory Services or part thereof and make an equitable reduction 
in the Contract Price;  
 
    14.1.3.   The Village may  terminate  this Agreement without  liability  for  further 
payment of amounts due or to become due under this Agreement except for amounts due for 
Services properly performed prior to termination;  
 
    14.1.4.   The Village may withhold any progress payment or final payment from 
the Consultant, whether or not previously approved, or may recover from Consultant, any and 
all  costs  but  not  exceeding  the  amount  of  the  Contract  Price,  including  attorneys’  fees  and 
administrative expenses, incurred by the Village as the result of any Event of Default or as a result 
of actions taken by the Village in response to any Event of Default; or 

 
    14.1.5.  The Village may recover any damages suffered by the Village as a result of 
the Consultant’s Event of Default. 
 

15.  NO COLLUSION. 

 
15.1.  The Consultant hereby represents and certifies that the Consultant is not barred 

from contracting with a unit of state or local government as a result of: (1) a delinquency in the 
payment of any  tax administered by  the  Illinois Department of Revenue unless Consultant  is 
contesting,  in accordance with the procedures established by the appropriate revenue Act,  its 
liability for the tax or the amount of the tax, as set forth in 65 ILCS 5/11‐42.1‐1; or (2) a violation 
of either Section 33E‐3 or Section 33E‐4 of Article 33E of the Criminal Code of 1961, 720  ILCS 



    
 
 
 

‐ 11 ‐ 
 

5/33E‐1 et seq.  The Consultant hereby represents that the only persons, firms, or corporations 
interested  in  this Agreement are  those disclosed  to  the Village prior  to  the execution of  this 
Agreement, and that this Agreement is made without collusion with any other person, firm, or 
corporation.    If at any time  it shall be found that Consultant has  in procuring this Agreement, 
colluded with any other person, firm, or corporation, then the Consultant shall be liable to the 
Village for all loss or damage that the Village may suffer thereby, and this Agreement shall, at the 
Village’s option, be null and void and subject to termination by the Village. 
 
16.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 
 
  16.1.  This Agreement sets forth all the covenants, conditions and promises between the 
parties, and it supersedes all prior negotiations, statements or agreements, either written or oral, 
with regard to its subject matter. There are no covenants, promises, agreements, conditions or 
understandings between the parties, either oral or written, other than those contained  in this 
Agreement. 
 
17.  GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. 
   
  17.1.  This Agreement shall be governed by the  laws of the State of  Illinois both as to 
interpretation and performance.   
 
  17.2  Venue for any action brought pursuant to this Agreement shall be in the Circuit Court 
of Cook County, Illinois. 
 
18.  NOTICE. 
 
  18.1.  Any notice required to be given by this Agreement shall be deemed sufficient  if 
made in writing and sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, by personal service, or by 
electronic transmission to the persons and addresses indicated below or to such other addresses 
as either party hereto shall notify the other party of in writing pursuant to the provisions of this 
subsection:   
 
   



    
 
 
 

‐ 12 ‐ 
 

  If to the Village:        If to the Consultant: 
 
Village Engineer        Stacey Meekins, AICP 
Village of Oak Park          Principal 
201 South Boulevard        233 W. Jackson Blvd., Suite 1101 
Oak Park, Illinois 60302      Chicago, Illinois 60606 
Email: bmckenna@oak‐park.us    Email: stacey.meekins@samschwartz.com 

 
  18.2.  Mailing of such notice as and when above provided shall be equivalent to personal 
notice and shall be deemed to have been given at the time of mailing.   
 
  18.3.  Notice by electronic transmission shall be effective as of date and time of  electronic 
transmission, provided that the notice transmitted shall be sent on business days during business 
hours (9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Chicago time).   In the event electronic notice is transmitted during 
non‐business hours, the effective date and time of notice is the first hour of the first business day 
after transmission.  
 
19.  BINDING AUTHORITY.    
 
  19.1.  The  individuals executing  this Agreement on behalf of  the Consultant  and  the 
Village  represent  that  they  have  the  legal  power,  right,  and  actual  authority  to  bind  their 
respective parties to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
20.  HEADINGS AND TITLES. 
 
  20.1.  The headings or titles of any provisions of this Agreement are for convenience or 
reference only and are not to be considered in construing this Agreement. 
 
21.  COUNTERPARTS; FACSIMILE OR PDF SIGNATURES. 
 
  21.1.  This  Agreement  shall  be  executed  in  counterparts,  each  of  which  shall  be 
considered an original and together shall be one and the same Agreement. 
 
  21.2  A facsimile or pdf/email copy of this Agreement and any signatures thereon will 
be considered for all purposes as an original. 
 
22.  EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
  22.1.  As used in this Agreement, the Effective Date of this Agreement shall be the date 
that the Village manager for the Village of Oak Park executes this Agreement as set forth below.   
   
   



    
 
 
 

‐ 13 ‐ 
 

23.  AUTHORIZATIONS. 
 
  23.1  The Consultant’s authorized representatives who have executed this Agreement 
warrant that they have been lawfully authorized by the Consultant’s board of directors or its by‐
laws to execute this Agreement on its behalf.  The Village Manager warrants that she has been 
lawfully authorized to execute this Agreement.  The Consultant and the Village shall deliver upon 
request to each other copies of all articles of incorporation, bylaws, resolutions, ordinances or 
other documents which evidence their  legal authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of 
their respective parties. 
 
24.  EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER. 
 

24.1.  The Consultant is an equal opportunity employer and the requirements of 44 Ill. 
Adm. Code 750 APPENDIX A and Chapter 13 (“Human Rights”) of the Oak Park Village Code are 
incorporated herein as though fully set forth.   The Consultant shall not discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment because of race, sex, gender identity, gender expression, 
color, religion, ancestry, national origin, veteran status, sexual orientation, age, marital status, 
familial status, source of income, disability, housing status, military discharge status, or order of 
protection status or physical or mental disabilities that do not impair ability to work, and further 
that  it  will  examine  all  job  classifications  to  determine  if minority  persons  or  women  are 
underutilized and will  take appropriate affirmative action  to rectify any such underutilization.  
The Consultant shall comply with all requirements of Chapter 13 (“Human Rights”) of the Oak 
Park Village Code.   

 
24.2.  In the event of the Consultant’s noncompliance with any provision of Chapter 13 

(“Human  Rights”)  of  the Oak  Park  Village  Code,  the  Illinois Human  Rights  Act  or  any  other 
applicable  law,  the  Consultant may  be  declared  non‐responsible  and  therefore  ineligible  for 
future Agreements or subcontracts with  the Village, and  the Agreement may be cancelled or 
voided in whole or in part, and such other sanctions or penalties may be imposed or remedies 
invoked as provided by statute or regulation. 

 
24.3.  In all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by it on its behalf, the 

Consultant  shall  state  that  all  applicants  will  be  afforded  equal  opportunity  without 
discrimination because of race, sex, gender identity, gender expression, color, religion, ancestry, 
national origin, veteran status, sexual orientation, age, marital status, familial status, source of 
income,  disability,  housing  status, military  discharge  status,  or  order  of  protection  status  or 
physical or mental disabilities that do not impair ability to work. 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK ‐ 
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 



    
 
 
 

‐ 14 ‐ 
 

  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be signed by their 
duly authorized representatives on the dates set forth below. 
 
VILLAGE OF OAK PARK         SAM SCHWARTZ CONSULTING, LLC 
     
 
_____________________________      _____________________________   
By:  Kevin J. Jackson        By:  Stacey Meekins 
Its:  Village Manager        Its:   Principal 
 
 
Date: _______________, 2023      Date: _______________, 2023 
 
              ATTEST: 
 
 
              _________________________   
              By:   
              Its:    
 
 
              Date: _______________, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 



March 8, 2019 
 
Village President Village of Oak Park  
123 Madison Street  
Oak Park, IL 60302 
 
RE: STP Grant Letter of Commitment – Harlem Avenue Multimodal 
Bridge Replacement Project 
 
President Abu-Taleb: 
 
The Village of River Forest is excited to participate in the joint Surface 
Transportation Program (STP) Shared Fund grant application for the 
Harlem Avenue Multimodal Bridge Replacement project.  Please accept 
this letter as a commitment of the Village of River Forest for funding up 
to 25% of the cost of the local match for this project. We anticipate this 
cost would be approximately $1,500,000 for the Village of River Forest’s 
share. 
 
The Village has the financial feasibility to pay for its share of this project.  
The Village would pay for this project using the following: 
 
1. Capital Improvement Fund – The Village maintains a separate 
fund for capital improvements which is funded from parking revenue 
and red light camera revenue. 
2. Motor Fuel Tax Fund – The Village receives funds on a monthly 
basis from the State of Illinois for applicable capital projects that occur 
in the rights-of-way which we believe this project would qualify. 
3. General Fund Reserves – The Village maintains a fund balance of 
at least 25% and currently has approximately 35% on hand. 
 
Finally, in the event the aforementioned funds were unavailable, as a 
non-home rule community, the Village maintains a limited debt 
authority to issue general obligation bonds without voter approval. The 
existing debt will be paid in full by December 1, 2019 and the Village will 
have the ability to issue additional debt after that point to pay for our 
portion of this project. 
 
Should the Village be awarded the STP Shared Fund grant, the Villages of 
Forest Park, Oak Park, and River Forest will be required to enter into an 
Intergovernmental Agreement to fund the local match for this project. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Eric Palm 
Village Administrator 







 Office of the Fire 
Chief 

Memo  
To: Village Council 

From: Fire Chief Phil Chiappetta 

Date: 2/2/2023 

Re: Purchase Request for New Extrication Equipment 

Forest Park Village Council, 

The fire departments current extrication equipment is approx. 10 years old. While 
they are still functioning, the tools do not meet the current industry standards for 
cutting or spreading force. Over the last 10 years vehicles have been being built 
with higher strength materials for passenger safety. This does help the occupants 
of the vehicles, but it poses a challenge to us when we are trying to extricate 
them from a wreck. Our current tools do not cut through these materials as easily 
as the newer tools do. They take a lot longer to perform the same tasks if they 
even are capable of doing so.  
 
I talked with the Foreign Fire Tax Fund; they are willing to split the cost with the 
Village. I have enough money in my budget to cover the 50% of the cost 
($16,000). I applied for a grant last year to obtain these new tools, but we were 
denied.    
 
I am requesting permission to go ahead with this purchase.  Attached is the 
quote for the purchase. I am also including some photos from 2 accidents we had 
last Saturday to give you an idea of what we have been encountering lately. 
 
Thank you,  
 
 

 

 

Phil Chiappetta 

Fire Chief 



1113728.1 

 
ORDINANCE NO. ________________-23 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION  
OF A PURCHASE ORDER QUOTE FOR THE ACQUISITION OF  

EMERGENCY EXTRICATION EQUIPMENT  
FOR THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK FIRE DEPARTMENT  

 
 WHEREAS, Section 1-8A-5A of the Village Code of the Village of Forest Park 

authorizes the corporate authorities of the Village of Forest Park (“Village”) to waive, by a 

fourth-fifths vote of the corporate authorities, the competitive bidding requirements of the 

Village Code; and 

 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village find it advisable, necessary and in 

the best interest of the public to waive the competitive bidding requirements of Section 1-8A-5A 

of the Village Code and approve and authorize the execution of a purchase order quote (“Quote”) 

with Air One Equipment, Inc. (“Air One”) for the purchase of various Hurst extrication 

equipment (“Equipment”).  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the 

Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1-8A-5A of the Village Code, the 

corporate authorities hereby waive advertising for competitive bids and approve and authorize 

the Mayor’s execution of a Quote with Air One for the purchase of the Equipment in the 

discounted amount of $32,665.00, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a 

part hereof, conditioned upon and subject to contribution by the Foreign Fire Tax Fund in the 

amount of $16,332.50 (“FTF Contribution”) towards the total Quote amount. 

 Section 2. Subject to receipt by the Village of the FTF Contribution, the corporate 

authorities of the Village authorize and direct the Mayor to accept the Quote, and the officers of 



1113728.1 

the Village are hereby authorized to perform the terms and conditions of the Quote, on behalf of 

the Village. 

 Section 3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage by a four-

fifths (4/5ths) vote of the Council then elected and adoption as provided by law. 

 PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 13th day 

of February, 2023. 

 AYES:___________________________________________ 

 NAYS:___________________________________________ 

 ABSENT:_________________________________________ 

        APPROVED: 
 
 

______________________________ 
        Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 

 
  



1113728.1 

EXHIBIT A 
PURCHASE ORDER 

 

 



QUOTATION

Date

1/19/2023

Quote #

23690

Sold To

FOREST PARK FIRE DEPT
7625  WILCOX AVE
FOREST PARK, IL 60130-1818

Ship To

FOREST PARK FIRE DEPT
CHIEF CHIAPETTA
7625 WILCOX AVENUE
FOREST PARK, IL 60130

P.O. No. Terms

Net 45

Salesman

JG

Quoted By

JG

Total

Subtotal
Sales Tax (0.0%)

Freight charges are added when invoiced unless otherwise noted.

847-289-9000
847-289-9001
airone@aoe.net

 360 Production Drive
 South Elgin, IL 60177
 Phone: 
 Fax:
 Email:

3% PROCESSING FEE FOR CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS OVER $500

VALID FOR 30 DAYS.

Effective Jan 1, 2021, all returns after 30 days of delivery will incur a 20% restocking fee.
Items ordered in connection with natural disasters, pandemic or like situations cannot be
returned and orders for such items cannot be cancelled after 10 days of Seller’s receipt.

PLEASE DO NOT PAY OFF OF THIS
QUOTE. A FINAL INVOICE WILL BE 
SENT ONCE ORDER IS COMPLETE.

DO NOT PAY- INVOICE TO FOLLOW

Item Description Qty Cost Amount

272899000-9 HURST: S799E3 eDRAULIC 3.0 CUTTER
PACKAGE

1 11,930.00 11,930.00

271855000-9 HURST: SP555E3 SPREADER 9Ah PACKAGE 1 12,140.00 12,140.00
274885000-9 HURST: R521E3 RAM 9AH PACKAGE 1 8,595.00 8,595.00

EACH TOOL INCLUDES (2) BATTERIES AND (1)
110 VOLT CHARGER

$32,665.00

$32,665.00

$0.00



These photos are from 2 separate accidents that occurred less than 30 minutes apart last 

Saturday night. People from both accidents had to be extricated. 

  

  

 



 

 



 



 

 

 



Office of the Fire Chief 

Memo 
To: Village Council 

From: Fire Chief Phil Chiappetta 

Date: 02/09/2023 

Re:  PBS Billing Company 

 

Forest Park Village Council,  

I am seeking approval from the Village Council to renew the contract with PBS Ambulance 
Billing Company. PBS is the current company the Village uses for ambulance billing. I was able 
to negotiate the same rate (4%) which PBS currently charges for ambulance billing. PBS usually 
charges up to 7% if the Village does not contract paramedic services with them. By keeping 
PBS at 4% it reduces the estimate of taking the ambulance in-house by about $30,000 per 
year.  

Thank you, 

 

Phil Chiappetta  

Fire Chief 

 



1112613_1  

ORDINANCE NO. O-__________________-23 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION  
OF A PARAMEDIC BILLING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PARAMEDIC 
BILLING SERVICES, INC. TO PROVIDE PARAMEDIC BILLING SERVICES 

 TO THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 
 

 WHEREAS, Section 1-8A-5A of the Village Code of the Village of Forest Park 

authorizes the corporate authorities of the Village of Forest Park (“Village”) to waive, by fourth-

fifths vote of the corporate authorities, the competitive bidding requirements of the Village Code; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the Village provides emergency paramedic ambulance services to its 

residents and requires a comprehensive, integrated system to efficiently control and bill in a cost 

effective manner for paramedic services; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village proposes to contract to provide such paramedic billing services 

(“Services”) with a third-party vendor; and 

 WHEREAS, Paramedic Billing Services, Inc. (“PBS”) has provided and currently 

provides and proposes to continue providing such Services to the Village; and 

 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village believe that, due to its experience, 

skill set and existing prior satisfactory relationship with the Village, PBS is uniquely qualified to 

provide such cost effective and efficient Services to the Village; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village has received a proposal from PBS to continue providing such 

Services to the Village; and 

 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village find it advisable, necessary and in 

the best interest of the public to waive the requirement of Section 1-8A-7 of the Village Code to 

waive the competitive bidding requirements, and to accept the proposal from PBS regarding the 

Services. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The foregoing recital clauses to this Ordinance are adopted by the 

corporate authorities as their findings of fact and are incorporated herein by specific reference. 

 Section 2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1-8A-5A of the Village Code, the 

corporate authorities hereby waive advertising for competitive bids and approve and authorize 



1112613_1  

the Mayor’s execution of the Agreement with PBS for the Services, a copy of which is attached 

hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof, subject to PBS executing the Contractor’s 

Certification Form, attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof. 

 Section 3. That certain “Billing Agreement for the Village of Forest Park,” between 

the Village and PBS, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Agreement”), is 

hereby approved for a period commencing April 23, 2023 and ending April 22, 2026. 

 Section 4. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute said Agreement, 

on behalf of the Village of Forest Park. 

 Section 5. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption as 

provided by law. 

 PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, this 13th 

day of February, 2023. 

 
AYES:  ___________________ 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 

APPROVED:   
 
  

 _____________________________________ 
      Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 
ATTESTED: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk  



1112613_1  

EXHIBIT A 
 

Billing Agreement with Paramedic Billing Services, Inc. 



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  



1112613_1  

 
  



1112613_1  

EXHIBIT A 
 

CONTRACTOR’S CERTIFICATION FORM 
 

The assurances hereinafter made by PARAMEDIC BILLING SERVICES, INC. 
(hereinafter the “Contractor”) are each a material representation of fact upon which reliance is 
placed by the Village of Forest Park in entering into the contract with the Contractor.  The 
Village of Forest Park may terminate the contract if it is later determined that the Contractor 
rendered a false or erroneous assurance. 

 

I, ________________________, hereby certify that I am the ____________________ of 
(Name of Owner or Officer)      (Title or Office)  

PARAMEDIC BILLING SERVICES, INC., and as such, hereby represent and warrant to the 

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, a municipal corporation, (hereinafter the “Village”) that the 
Contractor and its shareholders holding more than five percent (5%) of the outstanding shares of 
the corporation, its officers and directors are: 

  
(a) not delinquent in the payment of taxes to the Illinois Department of Revenue in 

accordance with 65 ILCS 5/11-42.1-1; 
 
(b) not barred from contracting as a result of a violation of either Section 33E-3 

(bid rigging) or 33E-4 (bid-rotating) of the Criminal Code of 1961 (720 ILCS 
5/33E-3 and 5/33E-4); 

 
 (c) not in default, as defined in 5 ILCS 385/2, on an educational loan, as defined in 

5 ILCS 385/1. 
 
  In addition, the Contractor hereby represents and warrants to the Village, that:  
 

(A) the Contractor, pursuant to 30 ILCS 580/1 et seq. (“Drug-Free Workplace Act”), 
will provide a drug-free workplace by: 

 
   (1) Publishing a statement: 
    
   a.   Notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 

dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance including 
cannabis, is prohibited in the Contractor's workplace; 

 
 b. Specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for 

violations of such prohibition; 
 

 c. Notifying the employee that, as a condition of employment on such 
Contract, the employee will; 

  
 i.   Abide by the terms of the statement; 
  



1112613_1  

 ii.   Notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction 
for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five 
(5) days after such conviction; 

 
(2) Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about: 

 
    a. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
     

b. the Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
  
c. any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee 

assistance program; and 
 
    d.  the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug 

violations; 
     

(3) Making it a requirement to give a copy of the statement required by 
Subsection (A)(1) to each employee engaged in the performance of the 
Contract, and to post the statement in a prominent place in the workplace; 

 
(4) Notifying the Village within ten (10) days after receiving notice under 

paragraph(A)(1)e from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice 
of such conviction; 

 
(5) Imposing a sanction on, or requiring the satisfactory participation in a drug 

abuse assistance or rehabilitation program by any employee who is so 
convicted, as required by 30 ILCS 580/5; 

 
(6) Assisting employees in selecting a course of action in the event drug 

counseling treatment and rehabilitation is required and indicating that a 
trained referral team is in place; 

 
(7) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace 

through implementation of this section;  
 
(B) the Contractor has not excluded and will not exclude from participation in, denied 

the benefits of, subjected to discrimination under, or denied employment to any 
person in connection with any activity funded under the contract on the basis of 
race, color, age, religion, national origin, disability, or sex; 

 
(C) no Village officer, spouse or dependent child of a Village officer, agent on behalf 

of any Village officer or trust in which a Village officer, the spouse or dependent 
child of a Village officer or a beneficiary is a holder of any interest in the 
Contractor; or, if the Contractor’s stock is traded on a nationally recognized 
securities market, that no Village officer, spouse or dependent child of a Village 
officer, agent on behalf of any Village officer or trust in which a Village officer, 



1112613_1  

the spouse or dependent child of a Village officer or a beneficiary is a holder of 
more than one percent (1%) of the Contractor, but if any Village officer, spouse or 
dependent child of a Village officer, agent on behalf of any Village officer or trust 
in which a Village officer, the spouse or dependent child of a Village officer or a 
beneficiary is a holder of less than one percent (1%) of such Contractor, the 
Contractor has disclosed to the Village in writing the name(s) of the holder of 
such interest; 

 
(D) no officer or employee of the Village has solicited any gratuity, discount, 

entertainment, hospitality, loan, forbearance, or other tangible or intangible item 
having monetary value including, but not limited to, cash, food and drink, and 
honoraria for speaking engagements related to or attributable to the government 
employment or the official position of the employee or officer from the 
Contractor in violation of Section 2-8A-3 of the Municipal Code of the Village of 
Forest Park;  

 
(E) the Contractor has not given to any officer or employee of the Village any 

gratuity, discount, entertainment, hospitality, loan, forbearance, or other tangible 
or intangible item having monetary value including, but not limited to, cash, food 
and drink, and honoraria for speaking engagements related to or attributable to the 
government employment or the official position of the employee or officer in 
violation of Section 2-8A-3 of the Municipal Code of the Village of Forest Park; 

 
(F) neither it nor any of its principals, shareholders, members, partners, or affiliates, 

as applicable, is a person or entity named as a Specially Designated National and 
Blocked Person (as defined in Presidential Executive Order 13224) and that it is 
not acting, directly or indirectly, for or on behalf of a Specially Designated 
National and Blocked Person and that the Contractor and its principals, 
shareholders, members, partners, or affiliates, as applicable, are not, directly or 
indirectly, engaged in, and are not facilitating, the transactions contemplated by 
this Agreement on behalf of any person or entity named as a Specially Designated 
National and Blocked Person;  

 
(G) the Contractor acknowledges that, pursuant to the provisions of the Illinois 

Freedom of Information Act (5 ILCS 140/1 et seq.), documents or records 
prepared or used in relation to work performed under this agreement are 
considered a public record of the Village; and therefore, within thirty (30) days of 
completion of the work required of the Contractor under this agreement, the 
Contractor shall produce to the Village, in electronic format, all records that 
directly relate to the governmental function performed by the Contractor under 
this agreement at no additional cost to the Village; and furthermore, the 
Contractor shall review its records and promptly produce to the Village any 
additional records in the Contractor’s possession which the Village requires in 
order to properly respond to a request made pursuant to the Illinois Freedom of 
Information Act (5 ILCS 140/1 et seq.), and the Contractor shall produce to the 



1112613_1  

Village such records within three (3) business days of a request for such records 
from the Village at no additional cost to the Village. 

 
  If any certification made by the Contractor or term or condition in this contract changes, 
the Contractor shall notify the Village in writing within seven (7) days. 

 
 

Dated: ____________, 2023  Contractor:   PARAMEDIC BILLING SERVICES, INC. 
 
 

By: ____________________________________ 
       _________________ , ______________ 

(Name of Owner or Officer   (Title or Office)  
 

 STATE OF _____________  ) 
) ss. 

 COUNTY OF ___________ ) 
 

I, the undersigned, a notary public in and for the State and County aforesaid, hereby 
certify that ___________________________ known to me to be the _____________________ 

 (Name of Owner or Officer)      (Title or Office)  
of PARAMEDIC BILLING SERVICES, INC., appeared before me this day in person and, being 
first duly sworn on oath, acknowledged that he executed the foregoing certification as his free act 
and deed. 
 
 Dated: ____________, 2023 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Notary Public 

 
 

 




















































	021323VillageCouncilAgenda.pdf
	3A-012323VillageCouncilMinutes
	THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE
	VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
	HELD ON MONDAY EVENING, JANUARY 23, 2023
	ROLL CALL
	Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call. It was noted that Commissioner Nero was attending remotely, in compliance with section 1-4-4-H, of the village code of the Village of Forest Park.
	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	APPROVAL OF BILLS:
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins

	3B-012323SpecialBoardMeetingMinutes
	THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE
	VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
	HELD ON MONDAY EVENING, JANUARY 23, 2023
	Mayor Hoskins called the meeting to order at 5:34 p.m.
	ROLL CALL
	Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call. It was noted that Commissioner Nero was attending remotely, in compliance with section 1-4-4-H, of the village code of the Village of Forest Park.  Also in attendance ...
	Mayor Hoskins stated that the format of the meeting will be an informal workshop and regular rules of order are suspended.  The purpose of the meeting was to discuss proposed expenditures from American Rescue Plan Award (ARPA) funds, totaling $1,863,0...
	Administrator Amidei detailed that we have more flexibility on the types of acceptable expenditures because Forest Park’s ARPA allocation is under $10 million. Mr. Kupsak suggested that the village may be eligible for additional ARPA funds once we com...
	The Chamber of Commerce is slated to receive $40,000 a year for three years, to be used for marketing assistance.  The village will request a comprehensive marketing plan as well as documentation twice yearly and an annual overview of the activities a...
	Mental Health Assistance is $10,000 a year for three years and is intended to provide better resources and social services to residents.  Commissioner Maxham added that she is working with staff to hold a mental health fair on May 6th and suggested th...
	Public Comment
	Mr. Mark Boroughf asked what the split is for the Chamber or what would the Chamber get paid for administering the business grant program.
	Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk

	02.13.2023 Bills by Resolution
	2.13.2023 Resolution.pdf
	2.13.2023 Agenda.pdf

	9A-NPDESpresentation
	1
	9A-NPDESpresentation
	Slide Number 1
	What is NPDES?
	What is Phase II?
	Phase I vs Phase II?
	What is an Urbanized Area?
	Urbanized Area
	What is an MS4?
	Aspects of the MS4
	Other MS4 - Examples
	Why Are We Here?
	Slide Number 11
	NPDES MS4 Permit
	Slide Number 13
	NPDES MS4 BMPs
	NPDES MS4 BMPs
	NPDES MS4 BMPs
	Slide Number 17


	9B-2023DraftInfrastructurePlan
	9X-PPTDraftInfrastructurePlan
	9X-DraftInfrastructurePlan

	9C-BoardOfHealthCode
	Board of Health Memo.pdf
	9C-BoardOfHealthCode.pdf

	9D-CannabisZoningCodeTextAmendment021323
	9E-VigilantSolutionsPD
	APPROVED:
	ATTEST:
	9X-VigilantSolutionsPD.pdf
	Vigilant Memo
	Avigilon LPR Integration - LEARN (1)


	9F-SidewalkProgram
	1
	2
	S1

	9G-ILSOSagreement
	9X-ILSOSagreement.pdf
	8X-DacraAgreement
	9X-DacraAgreement2

	021323ILSOSmemo.pdf
	Request for Village Council Action: Adoption of a Resolution Approving an Agreement for Purchase by the Village of Forest Park and Its Agent, DACRA Adjudication Systems, LLC D/B/A DACRA Tech, LLC, of Computer Stored Information of the Illinois Secreta...
	Background
	Every few years, the Village purchases real-time vehicle registration data, specific to the Village of Forest Park, from the Office of the Illinois Secretary of State.  This data is then uploaded into the Village’s vehicle registration software system...
	Attachments
	- Required Certified Statements by the Village and DACRA Tech, LLC regarding use;
	- Office of Illinois Secretary of State Data Agreement
	- Resolution Approving Agreement

	Resolution authorizing agreement with SOS for purchase by the Village and DACRA Adjudication Systems of computer stored information

	9H-IDOTlpaResolution
	9H-IDOTlpaResolution.pdf
	021323IDOTlpaMemo.pdf
	Request for Village Council Action: Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Local Public Agency Joint Funding Agreement for Illinois Department of Transportation State-Let Construction Work and an Engineering Services Agreement with Christopher B. Burke ...
	Background
	The Village received an Illinois Transportation Enhancement Grant (ITEP) a few years back to provide for bicycle parking facilities near the Village’s two Blue Line CTA Stations (Des Plaines Avenue and Harlem Avenue).  Covered bike parking facilities ...
	See meeting packet from December 13, 2021 for more background information about this project.
	As this project is federally funded (about $102,000; $25,000 is the local match), the Village had to go through a QBS Process to select a Phase I/II/III Engineer to administer same.  Though the Village adopted by Resolution on December 13, 2021 the se...
	This process is similar to the recent Jackson Street Resurfacing Project, as said project was also federally funded.  The State of Illinois will handle the letting for this project, which is scheduled for early March.
	Attachments

	9H-IDOTlpaResolution.pdf
	1
	9X-IDOTformsCommuterBikeProject



	9I-HarlemAvenueGrantResolution
	Background
	9X-HarlemAvenueGrantResolution.pdf
	HarlemAvenueGrantResolution
	OPmemo
	SchwartzProposal
	OPagreement


	9K-HurstExtractionEquipment
	1
	2
	3
	Forest Park Ordinance waiving bids and approving and authorizing the execution of a purchase order quote for Hurst FD Equipment.pdf
	APPROVED:
	ATTEST:


	9L-ParamedicBillingContract
	9M-BoardAppointments
	9N-HousingForwardUseOfPublicPropertyRequest_Red
	9O-Senior Trips
	9P-Forest Park Raffle Application 2023-02-11



